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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR E

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEE
2023 2022 (Decrease)
2023%F 20224 CRZL)
RM’000 RM’000
FLER TLoEE
Results (Audited) (Audited)
#i5 (B (REZ)
Revenue W 93,763 105,680 (11.3)%
Gross profit el 22,907 23,449 (2.3)%
Profit/(loss) before tax FRigATEA], (B518) (1,465) 2,697 N/AT3E A
Loss attributable to equity holders of KABRERFE ARGLER
the Company for the year 518 (4,249) (807) N/ARGE
Basic and diluted loss per share KRB ERERFE AE(
attributable to equity holders of the EREARIEEEE (25
Company (RM sen) ) (0.18) (0.03) N/AT 4
As at As at
31 December 31 December Increase/
2023 2022 (Decrease)
2023%F 20224 &,
12H31H 12H31H CRiZL)
RM’000 RM’000
TEH SEHE
Financial Position (Audited) (Audited)
MR (BEZ) (2B 1)
Total assets MBS E 103,620 111,760 (7.3)%
Loans and borrowings ERRER 6,895 13,383 (48.5)%
Total equity attributable to equity holders of Z<A B wHIFH A
the Company FE(h R 4R EE 81,222 84,561 (3.9%
Current ratio (times)* TRENEEE () 5.3 4.7 13.6%
Gearing ratio (%)™ B EBSBEE%)™ (7.9)
percentage
points
8.5 15.8 B
Return on equity (%)*** 1 78 [O] TR (%)™ (5.2) (1.0) N/AT#E A

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities as at the end of each reporting year.

* Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total loans and borrowings divided
by the total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company as at the
end of each reporting year and multiplied by 100%.

Return on equity is calculated based on profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company for each reporting year divided by the total equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company as at the end of each reporting
year and multiplied by 100%.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
K2EEM
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
K2EEM
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EHEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am delighted to
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Our Group’s businesses include (i) the provision of outsourced document
management services and related enterprise software solutions in
Malaysia; (i) the provision of outsourced insurance risk analysis services
and insurance marketing services in the PRC; and (iii) the distribution and
sales of medical equipment in the PRC. Our major customers include
highly reputable commercial enterprises in the financial industry and the
retail industry in Malaysia, Singapore and the PRC.

Having considered the expected level of technological changes required
to meet competition and future requirements across our customer base,
our strategy is to focus on the development in IT applications and services
to give us the technological edge to stay ahead of the competition in this
market segment.

With an experienced management and development team, we will
continue to scale up our products and service capabilities to build on our
competitive strengths in our proprietary technology, process advantage
and extensive customer base. These competitive strengths have
contributed to the Group’s continued recognition as a solution provider for
the financial industry in Malaysia. We will continue to listen to our clients
to develop our products and services and identify more new business
opportunities in the PRC.

We have been expanding our footprint in the PRC in recent years and
have been engaging in outsourced insurance risk analysis services and
insurance marketing services, and distribution and sales of medical
equipment business in the PRC. Furthermore, the acquisition of 100%
of the issued shares of Sun Join Investment Limited (“Sun Join”) on 26
January 2024 would allow us to be able to offer one-stop insurance and
healthcare services to our existing and new customers from the expanded
customer base in PRC and diversify our businesses. We will remain
prudent and develop our business at a steady pace in the PRC, and will
review the performance, strategies and development regularly.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHRS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 20283, our Group recorded a decrease in revenue
of approximately 11.3% from approximately RM105.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RM93.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The decrease was mainly due
to the combined effect of () the decrease in revenue generated from
the provision of outsourced document management services from
approximately RM77.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RM73.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023;
(i) the decrease in aggregated revenue generated from the provision of
outsourced insurance risk analysis services and insurance marketing
services in the PRC from approximately RM21.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately RM13.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2023; and (i) the decrease in revenue generated from
the provision of enterprise software solutions from approximately RM5.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RM5.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Our gross profit decreased by approximately RMO0.5 million or 2.3% from
approximately RM23.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RM22.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
decrease in gross profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
generated from the provision of document print and mail fulfilment
services in Malaysia and outsourced insurance risk analysis services in the
PRC. Our gross profit margin increased by approximately 2.2 percentage
point from approximately 22.2% for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately 24.4% for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the decrease in the
portion of our revenue generated from low profit margin services such as
the provision of document mail fulfilment services.

Our Group recorded a net loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately RM4.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2023, as compared with a loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately RM0.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to the decrease in gross profit and
the increase in administrative expenses.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EHEHRS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The industry transformations following the adoption of SaaS in delivering
applications over the Internet as a service and the development of new
technologies have accelerated the pace of change in the outsourced
document management services industry.

As we continuously evolve and adapt to the fast-changing requirements
of our customers in the banking, insurance and retail industries, who
are seeking more value from our products, services and solutions, we
address this demand by upgrading our [T infrastructure and expanding
our capacity to host and provide our suite of proprietary enterprise
software applications called the Streamline Suite in a new Data Centre
facility in Malaysia. This new Data Centre facility will contribute to our
Group’s outsourced document management services and enterprise
software solutions services by allowing our Group to enhance our
document hosting capability for electronic distribution and enterprise
software solutions to our existing and new customers.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The market demand has been continuously evolving and the fast-paced
developments in digital technologies have further fueled the growth of
the use of advanced technologies such as Al, livestreaming and video
technology to assist multi-channel engagement with customers and
automation to enhance business processes.

As we have been continuously strengthening our business model to be
“Future Ready”, we shall continue to invest in scaling up our solutions
and services to take advantage of this opportunity and respond to the
changes more purposefully to lay the foundation for the Group’s future
innovation and growth. The future growth prospects are clearly positive
and with our future-readiness of our solutions and services, we are fully
geared to make the most of the exciting new possibilities ahead.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERH®RS

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my deepest appreciation for the support of
our valued Shareholders and customers. Finally, to the management team
and all staff, | value your commitment and would like to thank you for
your contributions and hard work during the year, and | continue to look
forward to your support in the coming years.

Ma Shengcong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwm A

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

We are principally engaged in () the provision of outsourced services,
including the provision of outsourced document management services
and related software applications and enterprise software solutions
services in Malaysia as well as the provision of outsourced insurance risk
analysis services and insurance marketing services in the PRC, and (i) the
distribution and sales of medical equipment in the PRC. Our outsourced
document management services represent our largest revenue stream
which include (a) electronic document delivery; (b) document print and
mail fulfiment; (c) MICR cheque print and mail fulfilment; (d) medical ID
card print and mail fulfilment; and (e) document imaging and scanning
services. Our subsidiaries in the PRC are principally engaged in the
operation of outsourced insurance risk analysis services and insurance
marketing services business as well as the distribution and sales of
medical equipment business in the PRC.

Over the years, we have successfully developed proprietary enterprise
software applications focused on IT that drive digital transformation
for large companies in the banking, insurance and retail industries in
Malaysia. Our solutions are developed by our team of experienced IT
engineers having longstanding experience in both the IT and the financial
services industries, with the objective of optimising the IT document
management system of our clients.

We have experienced an increasing demand on SaaS including the
delivery of software application solutions in Malaysia, which has led
to an increase in demand from existing and new customers utilising
our Streamline Suite for enterprise software solutions services. As our
customers are mostly financial institutions in Malaysia, our Streamline
Suite and enterprise software solution services will be hosted in our Data
Centre in Malaysia, which is expected to be ready for use by the end of
2025.

In light of the above, we are upgrading our IT infrastructure and expanding
our capacity to host and provide our Streamline Suite in the Data Centre.
This new Data Centre will contribute to our Group’s outsourced document
management services and enterprise software solutions services by
allowing our Group to enhance our document hosting capability for
electronic distribution and enterprise software solutions to our customers.
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Future Plans and Prospects” in
this annual report for more details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwA D

Furthermore, in recent years, we have successfully expanded and
diversified our business in the PRC. Subsequent to the Reporting Period,
on 26 January 2024, the Company has completed its Acquisition of Sun
Join, and further diversified the Group’s business by entering into the
businesses of internet hospital and providing brick-and-mortar clinical
services. Through the Acquisition of Sun Join, the Group will gain access
to a comprehensive range of services that encompass both the digital and
physical aspects of healthcare, and a ready-made platform is provided to
the Group to enter into the internet hospital market will allow the Group
to capitalize on its growth potential in the PRC. At the same time, the
brick-and-mortar clinical services provide a complementary and tangible
aspect to the Group’s business. The Acquisition allows the Company to
leverage the existing infrastructure, facilities, and expertise of the clinics
controlled by Sun Join through its subsidiaries. This combination of virtual
and physical healthcare services ensures a comprehensive and holistic
approach to patient care, catering to a wide range of healthcare needs in
the PRC.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

We intend to achieve sustainable growth in our business and create long-
term Shareholder value. To achieve our goals, we propose to implement
the following strategies:

(i) Expanding the Group’s data processing and technical capacity:

- converting an existing building we acquired in 2022 into
the new Data Centre to upgrade our IT infrastructure for
expanding our outsourced document management services
and our enterprise software solutions;

- engaging external software development vendors to develop
new applications within our Streamline Suite and front-end
solutions;

(ii) Expanding the Group’s market presence locally and exploring
expansion regionally to capture further market share:

- maintaining and strengthening our relationship with existing
customers and capturing new customers mainly in Malaysia,
Singapore, Vietnam and the PRC; and

(i) Increasing the Group’s reputation, operational efficiency and
profitability through obtaining the Malaysia Multimedia Super
Corridor status when the Data Centre is ready for use.

sk R HMERN PEERRZ T
BEREE RIEHEB  NARNR20245F1526
HEMEREKRBEEE IEBESEHHAER
EBUIRESHRMAZCRBE T LTIEERA
EEEB - BERBZWEEE AERKERS
HEBTHRERBEERBNE2ERYG  UAK
EERE—ERARNFTE LUEABHBER
mH BEAEEENFNBERPENIERE
NeEF BEMZRBAREBEERIEHRER
NER WEEEEAATIMNARESEEH
WEBABPFERINZIREERSE RER
BEXEANFH ERLAEREBEREBRENGS
RERANEEESEE  mERTENEZ
BEREEREREX

RIREHEIRAIR
RAREREF AN ERAEENRERR
B AERAMNEE RFAFEHU TS

() FBEARTEEOBFRERRIEE

— MR 2022F WBHNIRA BTN
AT EIE O U RIRMITE
BEsR I AR FIB S FI M EE
RBREPINEERG RS E

— HEFENPEHmEREEEER URN
Streamline Suite S B i 2R 75 2R
BEEHERER ;

(i) WAFEBETIEMHNTHEERRRER
BIEERIUVENEZHIHME

- HMRFRNRARAEEZERHERG L
T2 RS ~ F N - HE K
BEESHMER &

(i) EBBBEHPOIER EBESERAIZS
HEBRERMURSTIEENEE E
BUEKRERAES]

C-Link Squared Limited
2023 FR

@



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEswm Rk th

The Group has applied approximately RM6.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$12.0 million) out of its internal resources for the design
and project management of the Data Centre since 2020. However, as
a result of the unprecedented COVID-19 Outbreak since the beginning
of 2020, the Malaysia government had taken a series of preventative
measures throughout the country, including but not limited to the MCO.
Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and the country-wide lockdown
measures under the MCO, the construction plan of our new Data
Centre was postponed, and as disclosed in the 2021 Announcement,
the Company subsequently decided to acquire and convert an existing
building in Malaysia into the Data Centre. On 10 January 2022, the Group
entered into a provisional agreement with an independent third party to
acquire a building in Malaysia for such purpose at the consideration of
RM12.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$22.3 million), of which
RM10.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.5 million) were paid
out of the net proceeds of the Company’s share offer and placing (the
“Share Offer”), further details of which are set out in the Prospectus
and the 2021 Announcement. The Group began the conversion of the
puilding into the Data Centre in June 2022. As at 31 December 2023,
the conversion work was still in progress and it is expected that the Data
Centre will be ready for use by the end of 2025. The conversion work
was delayed mainly due to the unexpected longer time required for the
application for approval for the building, renovation and construction plans
from the local authorities regarding the conversion of building usage.

The Group has expanded its footprint in the PRC and has been engaging
in outsourced insurance risk analysis services and insurance marketing
services, and distribution and sales of medical equipment business in
the PRC since July 2021 and April 2022, respectively. Furthermore, the
Acquisition would allow the Group to be able to offer one-stop insurance
and healthcare services to its existing and new customers from the
expanded customer base. The complimentary integration of the Group’s
insurance risk analysis services and insurance marketing services and the
distribution and sales of medical equipment businesses allows the Group
to provide enhanced solutions with greater operational efficiency in the
long term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEEs R h

Going forward, the Group expects to develop advanced internet cloud
technology and big data analysis to create a comprehensive and
efficient service system for customers in the insurance and insurance
related industries in the PRC. In addition, the Group aims to further
internationalise and diversify its businesses based on such service
system. Potential business opportunities include (i) the insurance big data
business; (i) the development of health management, equipment sales
and big health business related to insurance data; and (i) data cloud
services for various small-to-medium enterprises, such as telemedicine,
video conferencing and other business opportunities. The Group will
remain prudent and develop its business at a steady pace in the PRC,
and will review its performance, strategies and development regularly.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue from contracts with customers

Our total revenue amounted to approximately RM93.8 million and
RM105.7 million for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, respectively. Our revenue in 2023 was mainly derived
from (i) the provision of outsourced services mainly to financial institutions
and retails customers, including the provision of outsourced document
management services and related software applications and enterprise
software solutions services in Malaysia as well as outsourced insurance
risk analysis services and insurance marketing services in the PRC, which
in aggregate represented approximately 98.8% (2022: approximately
99.6%) of the total revenue of the Group in 2023, and (i) the distribution
and sales of medical equipment in the PRC, which represented
approximately 1.2% (2022: approximately 0.4%) of the total revenue of
the Group in 2023.

Provision of outsourced services
Outsourced document management services

Our revenue generated from the provision of outsourced document
management services represented approximately 78.6% and 73.4%
of our total revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022, respectively. The revenue from the provision of
outsourced document management services decreased by approximately
RM3.9 million or 5.0% from approximately RM77.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RM73.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023. Such decrease in revenue was mainly due to
the decrease in revenue generated from the provision of mail fulfilment
services as more customers in the financial industry embrace the trend of
paperless electronic document delivery for the year ended 31 December
20283.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Outsourced insurance risk analysis services and insurance
marketing services

We provided outsourced insurance risk analysis services and insurance
marketing services to our customers in the insurance or insurance related
industries in the PRC during the Reporting Period.

Our revenue generated from the provision of outsourced insurance
risk analysis services and insurance marketing services represented
approximately 14.3% of our total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: approximately 20.7%) and amounted to
approximately RM13.4 million (2022: approximately RM21.9 million). Such
decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in demand
for outsourced insurance risk analysis services as a result of the economic
downturn as an aftermath of the unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19
and the country-wide lockdown measures in the past few years in the
PRC.

Enterprise software solutions

We have provided enterprise software solutions to our customers using
our proprietary Streamline Suite and generate revenue mainly from license
fees, maintenance fees and implementation fees during the Reporting
Period.

Our revenue generated from the provision of enterprise software solutions
represented approximately 5.9% and 5.5% of our total revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively.
Our revenue from the provision of enterprise software solutions services
remained stable during the year with a slight decrease by approximately
RMO0.2 million or 4.3% from approximately RM5.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RM5.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Distribution and sales of medical equipment

We have been engaging in the distribution and sales of medical
equipment since April 2022 in the PRC. Such revenue generated from
the distribution and sales of medical equipment was recognised on
either a net basis when the Group’s subsidiaries acted as an agent in the
transactions or a principal basis when the Group’s subsidiaries acted as a
principal in the transactions.

Our income generated from the distribution and sales of medical
equipment represented approximately 1.2% of our total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately 0.4%) and
amounted to approximately RM1.2 million (2022: approximately RMO0.4
million).

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales decreased by approximately RM11.3 million or 13.8%
from approximately RM82.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RM70.9 million for the year ended 31 December
20283. Such decrease in the cost of sales was mainly attributable to (i) the
decrease in postage cost in 2023 as the provision of the document mail
fulfilment services decreased; and (ii) the decrease in service fees charged
by third party contractors as a result of the decrease in revenue generated
from the provision of outsourced insurance risk analysis services and
insurance marketing services in the PRC.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased slightly by approximately RM0.5 million or
2.3% from approximately RM23.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RM22.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Our gross profit margin increased by approximately 2.2 percentage
point from approximately 22.2% for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately 24.4% for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
slight decrease in gross profit was mainly attributable to the decrease
in revenue generated from the provision of document print and mail
fulfilment services in Malaysia and the outsourced insurance risk analysis
services and insurance marketing services in the PRC, while the increase
in gross profit margin was mainly due to a decrease in the portion of our
revenue generated from low profit margin services such as the provision
of document mail fulfilment services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other income

Our other income amounted to approximately RM1.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately RM1.2 million), which
mainly consisted of interest income generated from fixed deposits placed
with reputable banks.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses mainly represented the staff
costs incurred for the distribution and sales of medical equipment and
amounted to approximately RMO.1 million in 2023 (2022: approximately
RMO.1 million).

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately RM3.6 million
or 16.8% from approximately RM21.4 milion for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RM25.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2023. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase
in staff costs consisting of long-service remuneration and other staff
payments; and (i) the increase in allowance for expected credit losses on
trade receivables and bad debts written off for trade receivables.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately RM13,000 or 2.9% from
approximately RM446,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RM459,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
slight increase was mainly due to the decrease in the outstanding balance
of a term loan of the Group, which was partially offset by the increase in
floating interest rate of the term loan and amortisation of transaction costs
during the year.

(Loss)/profit before tax

Our loss before tax amounted to approximately RM1.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: profit before tax of approximately
RM2.7 million). Such loss before tax was mainly due to the decrease
in gross profit and the increase in administrative expenses as
abovementioned.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Income tax expense

Our income tax expense decreased by approximately RM0.4 million or
19.2% from approximately RM2.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RM2.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Such decrease in income tax expenses was mainly due to the
decrease in taxable income generated from the provision of outsourced
document management services in Malaysia, and the provision of
insurance risk analysis services and insurance marketing services in the
PRC.

(Loss)/profit for the year

QOur loss for the year amounted to approximately RM3.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: profit for the year of approximately
RMO0.3 million). Such loss for the year was primarily due to the
decrease in gross profit and the increase in administrative expenses as
abovementioned.

Final dividend

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: No final dividend).

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2023, total loans and borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately RM6.9 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RM13.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately
RM6.5 million or 48.5% as compared with that as at 31 December
2022. The Group’s loans and borrowings were at floating interest rates
of 4.50% to 6.85% (31 December 2022: floating interest rates of 3.50%
1o 6.60%) and denominated in RM during the Reporting Period. As at 31
December 2023, the loans and borrowings included secured bank loans
of approximately RM1.6 million (31 December 2022: approximately RM4.2
million) with maturity date of more than 2 years but not exceeding 5 years,
secured bank loans of approximately RM2.7 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RM2.6 million) with maturity date of more than 1 year but
not exceeding 2 years, and secured bank loans of approximately RM2.6
million (31 December 2022: approximately RM6.6 million) with maturity
date of less than a year or which were repayable within one year. As at
31 December 2023, loans and borrowings of the Group of RM6.9 million
were secured by first party open charge over the leasehold land, factory
building and shoplot of the Group, and the corporate guarantee by the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RM42.7 million (31 December 2022: approximately
RM53.9 million), which were denominated in RM, RMB and Hong Kong
Dollars.

The Group maintains a solid financial position and was in a net cash
position as at 31 December 2023. The Group is able to meet its
obligations when they become due in its ordinary and usual course of
business. The current ratio, being the ratio of total current assets to total
current liabilities, was around 5.3 times as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: approximately 4.7 times). The Group’s working capital
requirements were mainly financed by internal resources.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RM1.3 million (31 December 2022: approximately RM1.3
million) in relation to the conversion of its existing building to the Data
Centre, which will be funded by proceeds from the Share Offer and
internal resources of the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had capital commitments of approximately RM4.8 million in relation to the
acquisition of intangible assets for livestreaming and video technology,
which had been completed and paid during 2023.

Funding and treasury policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
for the year ended 31 December 2023. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments
can meet its funding requirements from time to time. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument
and would consider using such if the need arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Malaysia and the PRC with most of its
transactions settled in RM, SGD and RMB. The assets, liabilities and
transactions arising from the operations are mainly denominated in RM,
SGD and RMB. Although the Group may be exposed to foreign currency
exchange risks, the Board believes that the future currency fluctuations
will not have a material impact on the Group’s operations and the Group
did not enter into any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange risks for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group has
not adopted any formal hedging policies and would consider adopting
such policies if the need arises.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
8.5% (31 December 2022: approximately 15.8%), representing the total
loans and borrowings as a percentage of the total equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company as at the end of the respective reporting
periods. The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the
decrease in interest-bearing bank loans from approximately RM13.4
million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately RM6.9 million as at 31
December 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL AND BOARD LOT SIZE

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 9 June 2023, every one issued and unissued ordinary share of
par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company was
subdivided into three ordinary shares of par value of one-third Hong
Kong cent each, which became effective on 13 June 2023. As a result,
the authorised share capital of the Company has been changed from
HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of par
value of HK$0.01 each to HK$15,000,000 divided into 4,500,000,000
ordinary shares of par value of one third Hong Kong cent each, and
the total number of issued shares of the Company has been changed
from 800,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each to
2,400,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of one-third Hong Kong cent
each.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Following the share subdivision becoming effective, the board lot size of
the Shares for trading on the Stock Exchange has been changed from
4,000 Shares to 2,000 Shares effective from 9:00 a.m. on 28 June 2023.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 11
May 2023 and 9 June 2023, and the circular of the Company dated 19
May 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The management adopted a prudent investment strategy to utilise
surplus cash to generate stable interest income from low-risk investment
products. The management also monitored the investment performance
of those products on a regular basis.

The Group did not have any significant investment nor did the Group carry
out any material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Issue of Shares and Use of
Proceeds from the Share Offer” in this annual report, the Group does not
have other future plans for material investments and capital assets as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 December 2023, Core Squared Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share purchase agreement
(the “SPA”) with Ms. Zou Cheng (“Ms. Zou”) and Ms. Le Xian (“‘Ms.
Le”), pursuant to which Core Squared Limited conditionally agreed
to purchase, and Ms. Zou and Ms. Le conditionally agreed to sell, an
aggregate of 100% of the issued shares of Sun Join. The Acquisition
was completed on 26 January 2024 and Sun Join has become a indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the SPA, for the
purpose of settlement of the consideration, the Company issued and
allotted 284,550,898 and 189,700,599 Shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) to Sun Join Capital Investment Limited, which was wholly-
owned by Ms. Zou and Sun Join Venture Management Limited, which
was wholly-owned by Ms. Le, respectively, at HK$1.0 per Consideration
Share, representing an aggregate of approximately 16.50% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the Consideration Shares.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no significant
subsequent events undertaken by the Group after 31 December 2023
and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 165 employees (31 December
2022: 168 employees). The total remuneration cost (including Directors’
remuneration) amounted to approximately RM16.9 milion for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately RM13.5 million).

The terms of employment of employees conform to normal commercial
practice. The remuneration of the employees, Directors and senior
management of the Group is set and paid on the basis of the relevant
employees’, Director’s and senior management’s qualifications,
competence, work performance, industry experience, relevant market
trend and the Group’s operating results, etc. Discretionary bonuses are
granted to employees based on merit and in accordance with industry
practice. Other benefits including share options, retirement benefits,
subsidised medical care, pension funds and training programmes are
offered to eligible employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwm A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme.
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed
“Statutory and General Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in
appendix V to the Prospectus. No share option has been granted by the
Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE SHARE OFFER

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
27 March 2020, with a total of 200,000,000 Shares issued at HK$0.63
each by way of the Share Offer, raising net proceeds of approximately
HK$73.7 million after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses.

Having considered the then property market and business environment in
Malaysia as affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 and the development
needs of the Group as set out in the 2021 Announcement, the Board
resolved to, among others, change the use of the unutilised net proceeds
which were originally allocated to building the Data Centre to acquiring
and converting an existing building in Malaysia into the Data Centre. For
details, please refer to the 2021 Announcement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwA D

Subsequently, having duly considered the development needs of
the Group as set out in the 2022 Announcement and the 2023
Announcement, respectively, the Board has, among others, resolved
to (i) reallocate the unutilised net proceeds which were originally
allocated to “strengthening the Group’s technical operation support
system” to another existing use of “engaging external software
development vendor(s) and developing new applications within the
software development plan”; (i) include the development or provision of
livestreaming and video technology capabilities, and artificial intelligence
capabilities for its existing and new applications in the Group’s software
development plan; (iii) reallocate the unutilised net proceeds which
were originally allocated to “potential strategic acquisition and business
opportunities” partially to the existing use of “stepping up the Group’s
marketing and sale efforts to reach out to new customers” and partially
to the existing purpose of “engaging external software development
vendor(s) and developing new applications within the software
development plan”; and (iv) include the engagement of external service
provider(s) to provide marketing, sales, customer services and other
support services for the Group’s Streamline Suite products and services
as part of its existing purpose of “marketing and sale efforts to reach out
to new customers”. For details, please refer to the 2022 Announcement
and the 2023 Announcement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEswm Rk th

A summary of the planned use and actual use of the net proceeds from &P EFRERIEFE SRR B AR
the Share Offer is set out below: ZEHWMN
Intended use of
net proceeds as
stated in the Actual
Prospectus (and amount of Expected
as amended as utilised net timeline
set out in proceeds Actual Actual for utilisation
the 2021 during the amount of amount of of unutilised
Announcement, Reporting utilised net unutilised net proceeds
the 2022 Period and proceeds net proceeds as at the
Percentage  Announcement up to asat asat Latest
of total and the 2023 31 December 31 December 31 December Practicable
Purposes of the use of the net proceeds FiRRIESEASR net proceeds  Announcement) 2023 2023 2023 Date
RSN
(it#k20215 REEHA 12023% 12023%
AEN2F  REENBE 128318 12A310
AER2023%F 128318 B8R *BA RE#TTAH
EFERE  ASFREEED EERME FiigmIE FiigmIE HABAN
BRAEN FRRESE RIEBEN BENER BENER  FRETIETEN
Bt RERE EREE &8 &8 BHBREE
HK$'milion HK$'milion HK$'milion HK$'milion
B8R EE BE%ER BEER
(approximate) (approximate) (approximate) (approximate) (approximate)
(%) (54) (#4) (HE#Y) (HE#Y)
To increase technological capability and BNERENRE B 89.8% 66.2 ©.7) (30.2) 36.0
capacity to develop into other BE/FAHBNED
market vertical/parallels
~to acquire and convert an existing buiding into~ ~WEE—EIRBIEF I E HIE 76.7% 56.5 - (20.5) 36.0 31 December
the Data Centre and upgrade IT infrastructure AUBEROLURART 2025
BRI 2025
12A318
~ to engage external software development — MNP R R R 13.1% 97 9.7 9.7 =
vendors and develop new applications TEHHEEHER
within the software development plan RENERER
To expand market presence locally and BRSHTRNEREREEER 10.2% 75 4.4) 4.8) 2.7
explore expansion regionally to E-SERHENE
capture further market share
- to step up the Group's marketing and ~MAXEENEHER 10.2% 75 4. 48 2.7 31 December
sale efforts to reach out to new customers EENEUFIHER 2025
20255
12A81H
1000% 737 (138) (3.0) 387
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwA D

The balance of unutilised net proceeds brought forward to 2023 from
the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$52.5
million. The conversion of an existing building into the Data Centre
has experienced certain delay in the conversion schedule and has not
progressed as originally planned. The delay was primarily a result of the
need to rectify certain structural deficiencies of the building, as well as the
prolonged application and negotiation process with the local government
city council on obtaining their approvals with regard to the conversion of
the use, planning and construction following the changes in the building
design to rectify the structural deficiencies. In addition, the Group has also
encountered a delay in engaging other suitable external service providers,
in particular those in Singapore and Vietnam, to provide marketing and
customer support services. The Group has completed certain marketing
and sale activities in Singapore and Vietnam (which is in line with the
use of net proceeds purpose as set out in the 2023 Announcement)
and recorded such costs in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in 2023, and with such experience
and further understanding of those markets, the Group plans to formulate
more enhanced marketing and sale strategies and directions to further
promote and market the Group’s products and services to potential
customers in these two countries. Thus, the Group is of the view that
more time is required for it to internally formulate such strategies and
directions first, and thereafter the Group will identify and engage suitable
external service providers again to provide marketing and customer
support services to the Group in Singapore and Vietnam. As a result,
the expected timeline for utilisation of the unutilised net proceeds for the
purposes of (i) acquiring and converting an existing building into the Data
Centre and upgrading IT infrastructure, and (i) stepping up the Group’s
marketing and sale efforts to reach out to new customers have both been
delayed from 30 June 2024 to 31 December 2025. Notwithstanding that
the utilisation of the net proceeds has been delayed as aforementioned,
as at 31 December 2023 the net proceeds have been used and are
expected to be applied for purposes which are consistent with those
as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Proposed Use
of Proceeds” of the Prospectus, the 2021 Announcement, the 2022
Announcement and the 2023 Announcement. The unutilised portion of
the net proceeds has been deposited in reputable banks in Malaysia and
Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwm A

The business objectives, future plans and planned use of proceeds
as stated in the Prospectus, the 2021 Announcement, the 2022
Announcement and the 2023 Announcement were based on the best
estimation and assumption of future market conditions and industry
development made by the Company at the time of preparing the
Prospectus, the 2021 Announcement, the 2022 Announcement and
the 2023 Announcement, while the proceeds will be applied based
on the actual development of the Group’s business, the industry
and the economic conditions. As at 31 December 2023 and the
Latest Practicable Date, there was no change in the intended use
of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus, the 2021
Announcement, the 2022 Announcement and the 2023 Announcement.

ISSUE OF SECURITIES

The Company had not issued any of the Company’s securities for cash
(including securities convertible into equity securities) during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Shengcong (B4 H), aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 17 November 2021
and redesignated as an Executive Director on 25 October 2022. Mr. Ma
has been appointed as the chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer, an authorised representative of the Company, the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 1 May 2023. Mr. Ma has over 20 years of experience
in the insurance industry. From March 2017 to March 2021, he served
as the vice president of Aier Medical Investment Group Co., Ltd., an
investment company. From October 2016 to March 2021, he worked as
the preparation team leader and proposed general manager of Aier Health
Insurance Co., Ltd. From October 2014 to March 2017, he was the
general manager of the Community Finance Division in Anbang Insurance
Group (the “Anbang Group”), where he was responsible for managing
and coordinating the affairs of the Anbang Group with the government
of the PRC, and operating and maintaining the corporate, Internet and
community channels of Anbang Group. From October 2015 to December
2016, he served as the deputy general manager of the Inclusive Finance
Division and Innovative Finance Division in Anbang Group, where he was
responsible for risk control, product development, fund management
and comprehensive financial business innovation of microenterprises and
personal online credit business. From October 2010 to October 2014,
he was the deputy general manager of the Bancassurance Division in
Centennial Life Corporation and the deputy general manager of its office
in Shandong, the PRC. Between the period from August 2004 to October
2010, he worked at Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.,
where he took up various positions and responsibilities including the
deputy general manager and general manager of its various business
departments and branches before being promoted to supervisor of the
Bancassurance east area in August 2009. Prior to that, Mr. Ma served
as the manager of the Bancassurance department in China Ping An Life
Insurance Co., Ltd. from December 1998 to August 2004. From July
1994 to December 1998, he served as a business specialist of the Import
Department in a state-owned factory, principally engaged in the airborne
radar military industry.

In July 1994, Mr. Ma graduated from Beijing Technology and Business
University in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in Industrial and Foreign
Trade. In December 2003, he obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong (currently known
as Hong Kong Metropolitan University). In October 2020, he obtained
a master’s degree in Executive Master of Business Administration from
the National Development Research Institute of Peking University in the
PRC. As at the Latest Practicable Date , he is a PhD candidate in financial
management of Fordham University in the United States.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhang Ying (3R%¥), aged 43, was appointed as an Executive
Director with effect from 1 May 2023. Ms. Zhang has approximately
over 18 years of working experience in the marketing and technology
industry. She has an in-depth understanding of emerging marketing
technologies, especially in the Al field. From January 2019 to May
2023, Ms. Zhang was the marketing director of the Emerging Innovative
Business Division at Beijing SenseTime Technology Development Co.,
Ltd*., a company engaged in Al software innovation in the PRC, in which
she was responsible for product incubation and business development
of intelligent marketing products in new consumer areas. From May
2016 to December 2018, she worked as the assistant vice president
and general manager of the business unit at OpSmart Technology
Co., Ltd*., a company engaged in the development and integration of
intelligent hardware, data management platforms and precision marketing,
commercial application of big data and global network services in the
PRC. From September 2014 to December 2015, she worked as the vice
president of BlueFocus Culture Communication Co., Ltd.*, a marketing
technology company of the BlueFocus Communication Group in the
PRC. From October 2010 to April 2014, she worked as the senior
sales manager at JCDecaux China, an outdoor advertising company in
the PRC. From August 2008 to September 2010, she worked as the
assistant to the chief executive officer at the PRC branch company of
Neo Media Group, a digital marketing company. From May 2006 to
August 2008, she worked as the assistant to the general manager of the
Business Division at Avic Culture Co., Limited*, a company engaged in
public relations, fim and television, and media and outdoor advertising in
the PRC.

In July 2003, Ms. Zhang graduated from Northeastern University in the
PRC with a bachelor’s degree in International Trade. In July 2007, she
obtained a master’s degree in International Media Research from the
Communication University of China in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan, aged 62, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 15 February 2019. He is responsible for advising
on the corporate and business strategies of our Group. He is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of our Company in Malaysia. Mr.
S Ling has been the managing director and chief executive officer of
Compugraphic Forms Sdn. Bhd. (principally engaged in designing and
printing computer forms) since 1985. He had been the executive director
of Rafreq Maschinenbau Sdn. Bhd. (principally engaged in machinery
design & fabrication) for nine years until July 2018. He has also been the
director of Rejoice Home Sdn. Bhd. (principally engaged in investment
holding) and Rejoice Homes Ltd (principally engaged in buying and
seling of own real estate) since December 2005 and February 2017,
respectively.

Mr. S Ling obtained the Secondary School Honour Graduation Diploma
from High Park School and the Ministry of Education, Ontario in Toronto,
Canada in August 1979.

Dr. Wu Xianyi (2E%), aged 57, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 30 July 2021. Dr. Wu has over 30 years of
teaching and research experience in the fields of actuarial science and
statistics. Dr. Wu has served as Professor of Statistics and Actuarial
Science of the East China Normal University since April 2008. From
September 2005 to February 2006, he was a Postdoctoral Fellow at the
Department of Systems Engineering and Engineering Management at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. From August 2002 to August 2005,
he was a Postdoctoral Fellow at the Department of Applied Mathematics
of the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong. From July 1992 to August
1998, he was a lecturer at the Guiyang Medical College. From July 1986
to August 1989, he taught as a teacher at the Guizhou Bijie Finance and
Trade School.

Dr. Wu received a bachelor’s degree in Mathematics with concentration
in Pure Mathematics from Guizhou University in the PRC in 1986, and a
master’s degree in Mathematics with concentration in Pure Mathematics
(Mathematical Statistics) from the Guizhou University in the PRC in July
1992. In July 2001, he received a Doctor of Philosophy in Science from
the East China Normal University in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Zeng Jianhua (& 2 2E) , aged 40, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director with effect from 7 June 2021 and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee with effect from 27 March 2023. Dr. Zeng has over nine years
of experience in the biomedical and health industry. In June 2011, Dr.
Zeng founded Wuhan HuaTai Biotechnology Company Limited* (& 2
MREMRIEEARAE) (“Wuhan Biotechnology”), a company primarily
engaged in the development of anti-aging technologies and products
and sale of cosmetics, and has been serving as the chairman of Wuhan
Biotechnology since then. He took part in the invention of certain patents
including methods of protein purification and hair care products for
prevention of white hair. Dr. Zeng has also been the chairman of Jiaxing
JiuTai Biotechnology Company Limited* (B EIAKED M AR AT, a
company primarily engaged in the development of biomedical engineering
technologies, since December 2018. Since May 2015, he has served as
the executive chairman of the Youth’s Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Alliance of Communist Youth League in Hubei Province* GHi3E & FERIHT
BIZEE R in the PRC.

In June 2008, Dr. Zeng received a bachelor's degree in Biomedical
Engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology in the
PRC. In June 2012, he received a Doctor of Medicine in pharmacology
from the Huazhong University of Science and Technology in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEREE

Mr. Yang Junhui (B3 E &) , aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee, with effect from 21 March 2022. Mr. Yang has over 10 years
of experience in financial management. Since December 2012, he has
been a consultant of various consulting companies and investment
management companies and the director (consultant) of the Investment
Department of the Shenzhen Branch of National Modern Finance
Holdings Co., Ltd.. Since December 2019, he has been a partner of
Cybernaut Hechuang (Qingdao) Industrial Internet Technology Co.,
Ltd. (BRELSA (F8) TXEHAERKEBMRAF) (a subsidiary of
Shanghai Cybernaut Investment Co., Ltd. (E/8BA%IEEBRAR)),
and a financial adviser of Bestway Marine Technology Co., Ltd. (KXi&
RSP BE BRI RMD BRAB) (stock code: 300008, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and SOS Limited (RZHrER
N HTAEBR/AT) (stock code: SOS, a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange). In the aforementioned positions, he is responsible for
engaging in financial advisory services, managing financial projects, and
reviewing and analysing audited financial statements and internal controls
of companies listed in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States. From
December 2010 to November 2012, he served as the director of new
business development and manager of financial and tax control products
of IT Services Division of North China District Founder Technology Group
Co., Ltd. (F ERHSZEBRDBRAE) (stock code: 600601, a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), where he was responsible for
managing the market value, equity and debt financing, mergers and
acquisitions, providing financial advice, promoting financial tax system
products, and maintaining internal controls, of the listed company.

In June 1991, Mr. Yang graduated from the College of Resources and
Environmental Sciences, Nanjing Agricultural University in the PRC with an
undergraduate degree in Soil Chemistry.
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Mr. Qian Jianguang ($£%]3¢), aged 40, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 18 August 2022, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
with effect from 25 October 2022 and a member of the Audit Committee
with effect from 4 November 2022. Mr. Qian has over 13 years of working
experience in the financial management and auditing industry. Mr. Qian
has been a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) since 2020 and a certified management accountant (CMA)
since 2014. He also obtained the intermediate accountant qualification
certificate issued by the Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau in 2014. Since January 2022, he has been serving as
the chief financial officer of Takung Art Co., Ltd. (ticker symbol: TKAT),
an online trading platform operator of international art and collectibles
listed on the NYSE American of the United States. From October 2020
to June 2021, he worked as the chief financial officer of Merit-link Group,
a company engaged in investment consulting and corporate finance
consulting. From June 2018 to June 2020, he was the financial director
of the shared service centre in Shanghai Joyu Culture Communication
Co., Ltd.*, the holding company of the Lvmama Group, a business-to-
consumer based e-tourism platform for DIY tour advisory and booking
in the PRC, where he was responsible for budgeting, cost analysis, tax
management and financial reporting of the company. From December
2014 to June 2018, he served as the financial director at ShopeX Group,
an e-commerce software and service provider in the PRC, where he was
responsible for budgeting, cost analysis, tax management and financial
reporting of the group. From April 2013 to July 2014, he was the financial
manager at Minmetals Condo (Shanghai) Construction Co., Ltd.*, a
subsidiary of Minmetals Land Limited (stock code: 230), a company listed
on the Main Board and engaged in design, fabrication and installation of
curtain wall, cladding wall and roofing system, where he was responsible
for implementing financial information systems and overseeing the
financial reporting process for the business.

In June 2006, Mr. Qian graduated from Lanzhou University of Technology
in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in finance. In June 2012, he received
a master’s degree in accounting from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our Senior Management comprises Mr. Ma Shengcong and Ms. Zhang
Ying. For biographical details of Mr. Ma and Ms. Zhang Ying, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lok Yee (BRi#f), ACG, HKACG, was appointed as our
company secretary on 13 November 2018. Ms. Chan has over nine
years of experience in the provision of a full range of company secretarial
and compliance services and has held positions in various corporate
secretarial companies in Hong Kong. She is currently a senior manager
of corporate services in Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited and is
currently serving a portfolio of clients, including public listed companies
and private companies.

In October 2011, Ms. Chan was awarded her bachelor of arts degree
(with a major in English studies for the professions and a minor in
translation) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. In July 2015,
she was admitted to the degree of Master of Science in Professional
Accounting and Corporate Governance from the City University of
Hong Kong. She was admitted as both an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (how known as The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute) and an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (now known as The
Chartered Governance Institute) in the United Kingdom in September
2015.

SHREERE
RANEREEEOERERALEREEY
T AMBRERRELTNBENE 2K
FERTEE —Re

NEME

FR# ML £ > ACG~HKACG > 12018%F 11813
HEZEZARIME-BLITERHEE2EAR
MEREGRREFAEEANLELSR I
EEEAEZRABMELATMEHE - HIBAVistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited#9/A 5 IR 7 & 4Rk
KIB-BFA—RWEL (BIELTABI KA
NE)) RMEIRFS

R2011E108 L TEEBET KBHERX
B4 24 (FBEHXEBHAE BIBEHDE - ©
2015E7H HESBRTASHEREEIE SR
EEAEBE T2 [ 722015F9 8 EiZ 4R
AHEBRIWELY CRBEAQBAELT)
FERABRFHMERITHRAEAE RBEE
BHATAREBEAG) g8

C-Link Squared Limited
2023 FR

(=)



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETHRS

The Board of Directors presents this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

SHARE OFFER AND CAPITALISATION ISSUE

The Company was incorporated on 13 June 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act. A total of
200,000,000 Shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share were
issued at HK$0.63 each by way of the Share Offer on 26 March 2020
and on 27 March 2020, the Company’s Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Further, the Company allotted and issued
a total of 599,999,800 ordinary Shares, credited as fully paid at par, to
Flash Dragon and Jupiter Rain equally on 27 March 2020 by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$5,999,998 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company pursuant to the resolutions of the
Shareholders passed on 11 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (i) the provision of outsourced document management
services and related software applications and enterprise software
solutions in Malaysia and Singapore; (i) the outsourced insurance risk
analysis services and insurance marketing services in the PRC; and (i) the
distribution and sales of medical equipment in the PRC. Principal activities
of each of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 of the Notes to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 which includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
using financial key performance indicators and a discussion on the
Group’s likely future business development, events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year, the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company, the relationships between the Company and its
key stakeholders including its employees, customers and suppliers, and
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing are provided in the paragraphs headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Future Plans and Prospects”, “Events after the Reporting Period”,
“Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations”, “Relationship with
Employees, Suppliers, Customers and other Stakeholders” and “Principal
Risks and Uncertainties”, respectively of this annual report. The review
forms part of the Directors’ Report.

C-Link Squared Limited
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the Group’s current
operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control. The following
table shows the principal risks and uncertainties of the Group and how

the Group mitigates those risks:

Principal risks identified

R EERE
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Description of the principal risks identified
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Mitigation of risks
=39

The Group may not be able
to provide a Data Centre
which can comply with its
customers’ requirements
under the Risk Management
in Technology policy
document issued by Bank
Negara Malaysia (the “RMIT”)
if its lease expires and cannot
be renewed.

H R4 fEm B s L824 Al
REEBRIREREHETR
R B 2R A B X IR1T IR M
B (e iy R E IR ) (TRl /&L
MEE)) BEERNEEEF
ILho

The RMIT, which sets out Bank Negara Malaysia’s
expectations regarding the technology and risk
management framework and practice of financial
institutions, states that production data centres and
recovery data centres used by financial institutions
must be concurrently maintainable which shall be
similar or equivalent to the international standards of
tier 3 requirements.
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In accordance with the RMIT, the Group requires its
computer servers to be housed in a data centre with
access to a stable supply of electricity and internet
connectivity that meets the requirements of its financial
customers and Bank Negara Malaysia.
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As the Group is in the process of converting its
acquired building into the Data Centre (please refer to
the 2022 Announcement for details), the Group has
been leasing rack space of a tier 3 data centre from
a third-party tier 3 data centre owner as a transitional
arrangement (the “Transitional Arrangement”)
until the completion of the conversion. If the lease
expires and cannot be renewed before the Data
Centre is ready for use and if the Group cannot
find an alternative suitable space, the Group may
not be able to provide a data centre to its financial
institution customers that is similar or equivalent to the
international standards of tier 3 requirements.
ERAERETREMMBENEFIEREEFR O
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To ensure that the Group’s services
to its financial institution customers
will not be interrupted during the
process of converting its acquired
building into the Data Centre, the
Group has discussed with most of
its financial institution customers
that the Group will continue to be
allowed to adopt the Transitional
Arrangement until the Group has
completed the conversion works
and will renew the lease agreement
before it expires.
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Principal risks identified
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Description of the principal risks identified
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Mitigation of risks
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The Group’s revenue is mainly
derived from its major customers

FEERDTERETER

R

C-Link Squared Limited

The Company’s revenue is mainly derived from its
major customers. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the aggregate sales to the Company’s five
largest single customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 53.1% (2022: 56.1%) of the total
revenue and in particular, sales to the Group’s largest
single customer accounted for approximately 22.8%
(2022: 24.5%) of the total revenue. Accordingly, the
Group’s revenues would be affected by whether these
customers continue to use the Group’s services, as
well as other factors affecting their operations, many
of which are beyond the Group’s control. Where
the customers’ operations are adversely affected by
changes in the market, it may adversely affect the need
for the Group’s services and its business and results of
operations could be affected.
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As disclosed in the Prospectus,
the 2021 Announcement, 2022
Announcement and 2023
Announcement, the Company
intends to apply approximately
HK$7.5 million from the net
proceeds of the Share Offer to
step up the Group’s marketing
and sales efforts to reach out to
new customers. The Group is also
committed to attract new customers
in the banking and insurance or
other industries and reduce its
reliance on its major customers.
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Principal risks identified
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Description of the principal risks identified
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Mitigation of risks
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The Group is exposed to
credit risk
rEEBEREERE®BO

The Group is exposed to
interest rate risk
REEEERF) =R O

The Group is exposed to credit risk which may cause
financial loss to the Group if its counterparties fail to
discharge their obligations. As at 31 December 2023,
there were two single customers (2022: two single
customers) which accounted for approximately 35%
(2022: 48%) of the total net trade receivables of the
Company.

rEBEEEERRMO HXBZHFRERITE
% Pl AE S N EEIE B 5 E5 18 0 102023 128 31
B -AmEE—FP (20224 : MEE—FF) {54
NE) B FEWGRIEF EEAREEXI35% (20226F 1 48%) ©

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank borrowings as the fair value or future cash flows
of the Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
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The Group has adopted a policy
of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and depositing with
banks and financial institutions with
good credit rating. The exposure
to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis and action will be
taken by the Company for long
outstanding debts.
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It is the Group’s policy to obtain
the most favourable interest rates
available whenever the Group
obtains additional financing through
bank borrowings to minimise its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
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RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 94
of this annual report.

The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 is set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 95 and 96 of
this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information of the Group is set out in Note 5 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

As far as the Company is aware, as at 31 December 2023, there has
been no arrangement under which any Shareholder has waived, or
agreed to waive, any dividends proposed to be distributed for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on the board meeting dated
22 April 2020 that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for meeting its
working capital requirements and future growth as well as its Shareholder
value. The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to Shareholders’ approval. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account, among other things, the Group’s financial
results, cash flow situation, business conditions and strategies, expected
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and expenditure
plans, interests of Shareholders, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Act and the Articles.

C-Link Squared Limited
Annual Report 2023
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
2024 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 20 May 2024 to Thursday, 23 May 2024 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2024 AGM, the unregistered
holder of Shares must lodge all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 May
2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 14 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There are no movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 and set out in Note 25 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 97 in this annual report. As at 31 December 2023,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders
amounted to approximately RM8.3 million (2022: RM19.3 million), as
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

SHARE AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares and debentures for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

A total of 200,000,000 Shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share
were issued on 26 March 2020 at HK$0.63 each by way of the Share
Offer, raising a total of approximately HK$126 million. The net proceeds
raised by the Company from the Share Offer, after deduction of the
underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses, amounted
to approximately HK$73.7 million. For information on the use of proceeds
of the Share Offer, please refer to the section headed “Issue of Shares and
Use of Proceeds From the Share Offer” in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2023
and as at the Latest Practicable Date are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Shengcong, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Zhang Ying (appointed with effect from 1 May 2023)

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang (ceased on 1 May 2023)

Mr. Ling Sheng Chung (ceased on 1 May 2023)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan
Dr. Wu Xianyi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Zeng Jianhua

Mr. Yang Junhui

Mr. Qian Jianguang

Mr. Lee Yan Kit (ceased on 27 March 2023)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” on pages 27 to 33
in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Mr. Ma Shengcong, an Executive Director, has been re-designated from
an Independent Non-executive Director to an Executive Director on
25 October 2022, and has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of three years with effect from 25 October
2022 which shall be terminable by either party by giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other or payment of wages in lieu of
notice.

Ms. Zhang Ying, an Executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect
from 1 May 2023 which shall be terminable by either party by giving not
less than one month’s notice in writing to the other or payment of wages
in lieu of notice.

Mr. S Ling, a Non-Executive Director, has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the
Listing Date which has been automatically renewed for a further term of
three years upon expiration on 27 March 2023. The appointment shall be
terminable by either party by giving three months’ notice in writing to the
other or payment in lieu of notice.

Dr. Wu Xianyi, a Non-Executive Director, has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect
from 30 July 2021 which shall be terminable by either party by giving
three months’ notice in writing to the other or payment in lieu of notice.

Dr. Zeng Jianhua, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
with effect from 7 June 2021 which shall be terminable by either party
by giving one month’s notice in writing to the other or payment in lieu of
notice.

Mr. Yang Junhui, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
with effect from 21 March 2022 which shall be terminable by either party
by giving one month’s notice in writing to the other or payment in lieu of
notice.
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Mr. Qian Jianguang, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
with effect from 18 August 2022 which shall be terminable by either party
by giving one month’s notice in writing to the other or payment in lieu of
notice.

The above appointments are always subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has
an unexpired service agreement which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Related Party Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this Directors’ Report and in Note 27 of the Notes to
the consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangement and
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director (or any entity connected with a
Director) had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
20283.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not have
any controlling shareholder. No contracts of significance (including
contracts of significance for the provision of services) between the
Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and any controlling shareholder of the
Company (or any of its subsidiaries) subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with applicable
accounting standards, details of which are set out in Note 27 of the Notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. Such related
party transactions fall under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
and they are fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable disclosure
and other requirements in respect of such connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had certain
fully-exempt continuing connected transactions, which are mainly related
1o the purchase by the Group of certain printing materials, and are set out
in Note 27 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

As each of the applicable ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules) in respect
of the continuing connected transactions is less than 5% and the annual
caps for each of the three years ended 31 December 2023 are less than
HK$3,000,000, the continuing connected transactions constitute de
minimis transactions and are exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the businesses of the Company were entered into or existed.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had registered any interests or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

FERRNRM KBRS PrER

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND R%X&
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in the register required to

be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of
ordinary Shares

J

122023 F 128318 EEMA > LT AL
FERBEEFHNTIETHAE RERBRIRKRMN
FEBRMTEANERERREIZISRAE
1RPIEXVEE B2 37 BE AV IR X A A A A BE
RENALHENEARBDREZSRAEERNE
3B6EEFENZLCLMAVEDINE !

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interests held/interest interest®
- B EE R

e P 517 HERtE ZEkEE" BLE®

Mr. Wang Yaxian Beneficial interest 522,000,000 21.75%

FaERESE BmiEm

Mr. Wu Xianlong Beneficial interest 360,000,000 15.00%

RERESRLE Bnlm

Sun Join Capital Investment Limited® Beneficial owner 284,550,898 11.86%

BmEEA

Ms. Zou® Interest of a controlled corporation 284,550,898 11.86%

gt REGEE T

Mr. Li Lianbin® Interest of spouse 284,550,898 11.86%

FEMW LD BBt

Sun Join Venture Management Limited® Beneficial owner 189,700,599 7.90%

BmBEBEA

Ms. Le® Interest of a controlled corporation 189,700,599 7.90%

£ ogunlyl DR T

Mr. Wan Shifang Beneficial interest 162,000,000 6.75%

Bt EE Bn#n

Mr. Liao Hui Beneficial interest 153,468,000 6.39%

PEdt EmEm

Notes: MIEE -

(1) All the above Shares are held in long position.

) The calculation is based on the total number of 2,400,000,000 Shares in )

issue as at 31 December 2023.

©)) Pursuant to the SPA, the Company shall issue and allot 284,550,898 ©))
Consideration Shares to Sun Join Capital Investment Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Ms. Zou, as consideration for the Group’s acquisition of
60% of the equity interest in Sun Join Investment Limited from Ms. Zou upon
completion. Completion took place on 26 January 2024 and 284,550,898
Consideration Shares had been issued and allotted to Sun Join Capital

Investment Limited on the same date.
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(4) Pursuant to the SPA, the Company shall issue and allot 189,700,599
Consideration Shares to Sun Join Venture Management Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Ms. Le, as consideration for the Group’s acquisition of
40% of the equity interest in Sun Join Investment Limited from Ms. Le upon
completion. Completion took place on 26 January 2024 and 189,700,599
Consideration Shares had been issued and allotted Sun Join Venture
Management Limited on the same date.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 11 March
2020. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined in the
paragraph below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Board is entitled at any
time within the period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme to make an offer to the eligible participants (the “Eligible
Participants”) of the Share Option Scheme including:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, or potential employees,
executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(ii) any Directors (including Executive, Non-Executive and Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any suppliers and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to our Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

As at the beginning and the end of the year ended 31 December 2023
and at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the Listing Date, being 240,000,000 Shares (which represented
8.35% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report). Subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting, the Board
may:

0} renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of the approval by the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(ii) grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specially
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and the Eligible
Participants are specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought.

@ REROGEEHZ ARBFNTHEBESUN
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B¥A) 17 K& FCE189,700, 599}&%@&@ E
BEERBEL T WERAREBRA AF]40%
PR RE o SER B 1202451526 H#E 7>
189,700,599 A EBR M ENREHETREET
Sun Join Venture Management Limited °

f& EXRRiEE SN ) 7R2023FE 1283110 » i
ANETRROERERO T EERIBESNEE
&B EBEXVEB 552 %3 B IE BB A A B 1E
WENBLEBRNIRIRE S RIS RHIZE3361%

ﬁ%ﬁq DEFH’E)]’TETj$& EQ/A)E °
fERetEstal

KA 75"2020535115% W%Hx%ﬂ'iu gty
BN ENEESRATENAESERDHE

EEERTR Tx%ﬁﬁﬁx%f’ﬁ%ﬁ?gﬁﬁﬁl
R RSB E BBV SIBN S SR

FRIFFTTECHRER] RRIESEAREER
TR BEESt T F AR T 5 BBk 1
SENSERZ2EE (GERSHE) BHE
#8158

() FREIXEEANERSNEREZHL
FEES EBEEREE -TTHRASHSHEBE

= .
=,

(i) AREIHEETAMNBELAENERNES (B
BT FRATRBILIFATES) , &

(il ZEET2HIABITHIABSKEHAQT
&/IHEHWE“EW&E%%E@
R K EE R o

REZE2023FE12B31BIEFEMENRER
URERAERBAE RITHEREBERESE X
ARBEANEMBERES B TIRHNMERE
ERAEZETHNRMBHEEFIFBE L
T HEEETRMLE2HI10% (BN240,000,000
BRRMm  AREAERBPEETRMOEHEN
8.35%) R EINREASHER EF T !

() MBEEEZLBREREBERFEERRKX
FEMAEERBEITRMNI0%; R/

(i) KERIERNRRAGLFHAEASTER

SHERHBIE10% FRVERRE R
REIARSR LA ERETERAEE

BehiE-
O

\t

C-Link Squared Limited
2023 FR




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETHRS

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant
of options to an Eligible Participant in excess of the 1% limit shall be
subject to approval by Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible
Participant and his or her close associates (or his or her associates if such
Eligible Participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

Each of the grantees to whom an option has been granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/her option in the
manner set out in his/her offer document, provided that such period of
time shall not exceed a period of ten years commencing on the date on
which the option is granted. The minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised (i.e., the vesting period) is
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion upon the grant of an
option, provided that such period is not inconsistent with any other terms
and condition of the Share Option Scheme. The exercise of any option
shall be subject to the Shareholders in general meeting approving any
necessary increase in the authorised share capital of the Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme, the Eligible Participant shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant on or before the relevant
acceptance date. The subscription price for the Shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall, subject to the adjustments referred to in the Share
Option Scheme, be a price determined by the Board (or its committee) at
its sole discretion and notified to the Eligible Participants and shall be no
less than the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for business
of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme remains valid for 10 years until 10 March 2030
unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or amended. Accordingly, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 6 years.

@
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No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up to the
Latest Practicable Date. There was no share option outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme at the beginning of, during the year ended and as
at 31 December 2023.

For more information on the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Statutory and General Information — F. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2023.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at a rate specified in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, which is currently at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income and capped at HK$1,500 per month. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions by
the Group to the MPF Scheme vest immediately. Therefore there was no
amount of forfeited contributions that could be utilised during the year
ended 31 December 2023 nor was there any available to reduce the
Group’s existing level of contributions as at 31 December 2023.

As required by Malaysian law, the Group also makes contributions to
the state pension scheme for all qualifying employees in Malaysia, the
Employees Provident Fund (the “EPF”), a social security institution formed
according to the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 which provides
for the retirement benefits for all local employees. Both the employer and
employee are required to make contributions to the employee’s individual
account in the EPF at a specified percentage of the employee’s monthly
income. The EPF is a defined contribution scheme. The EPF does not
have an arrangement such that forfeited contributions (by employers on
behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the existing level
of contributions. Therefore there was no amount of forfeited contributions
that could be utilised during the year ended 31 December 2023 nor was
there any available to reduce the Group’s existing level of contributions as
at 31 December 2023.
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Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC have joined defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the PRC, such as basic pension scheme and
unemployment insurance. The Group makes contributions to the above-
mentioned schemes at the applicable rates based on the amounts
stipulated by the PRC government. The defined contribution scheme
mentioned above does not have an arrangement such that forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by the
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. Therefore there
was no amount of forfeited contributions that could be utilised during the
year ended 31 December 2023 nor was there any available to reduce the
Group’s existing level of contributions as at 31 December 2023.

The Company did not have any defined benefit plans during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE
COMPANY’S SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended and as at 31 December 2023 was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) to have any right to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The emoluments of the Directors were decided by the Board as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the
Group’s operating results, the individual performance of the Directors
and the comparable market statistics. The Directors’ fees are in line with
market practice. No individual Director should determine his/her own
remuneration.

Emolument package includes, as the case may be, fees, basic salaries,
housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to the financial results of the Group and individual
performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe
benefits such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set
out in Note 10 and Note 11 of the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or their
respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not have
any controlling shareholder.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the Articles. Such
provisions were in force throughout the year ended 31 December 2023
and are currently in force. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may
be brought against the Directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in relation to
the Shares, they are advised to consult their professional advisers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS, OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights were issued or granted by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, sales to the Group’s largest
single customer accounted for approximately 22.8% of the total revenue
and the aggregate sales to its five largest single customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 53.1% of the total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases from the
Group’s largest single supplier (the “Largest Supplier’) accounted
for approximately 70.4% of the total purchase cost and the aggregate
purchases from its five largest single suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 91.8% of the total purchase cost.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of our Directors, any of their
associates or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of our Directors,
own more than 5% of the issued Share capital of our Company) had any
interest in any of our five largest single suppliers and single customers.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group which are stated in the
section headed “Regulatory Overview” of the Prospectus. To the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during the year ended
31 December 2023, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group. The Company has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
The following are some of the primary laws and regulations applicable to
the Group in Malaysia and the PRC:

Risk Management in Technology Policy

In accordance with the RMIT, the Group requires its computer servers to
be housed in a data centre with access to a stable supply of electricity
and internet connectivity that meets the requirements of its financial
customers and Bank Negara Malaysia. The RMIT, which sets out
Bank Negara Malaysia’s expectations towards the technology and risk
management framework and practice of financial institutions, states that
production data centres and recovery data centres used by financial
institutions must be concurrently maintainable which shall be similar
or equivalent to the international standards of tier 3 requirements. The
Company has adopted measures to mitigate the risk of interruption of
the Group’s services to its financial institution customers. Please refer to
the paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” above in the
Directors’ Report in this annual report for more details.

(%)
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Laws and Regulations relating to Intellectual
Property

The Group uses various intellectual property rights such as software
copyrights in its daily business. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group complied with all Malaysian laws and regulations
relating to intellectual property, including the Copyright Act 1987 and the
Trademarks Act 2019. The Group was not subject to, or a party to, any
intellectual property rights infringement claims or litigation.

Laws and Regulations relating to Employment

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group complied with
all Malaysian laws and regulations relating to employment, including
the Employment Act 1955, the Employment (Restriction) Act 1968,
the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991, the Employees’ Social
Security Act 1969, the Minimum Wages Order (Amendment) 2018 and
Minimum Wages Order 2020, the Industrial Relations Act 1967 and the
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994. The Group registered its staff
for social insurance and made all relevant contributions. It did not receive
any penalty from the relevant administrative departments and did not
experience any material disputes with, or claims by, any of its employees.

Laws and Regulations relating to Taxation

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group complied with all
Malaysian laws and regulations relating to taxation, including the Income
Tax Act 1967, Income Tax (Deduction from Remuneration) Rules 1994,
Promotion of Investments Act 1986, and Service Tax Act 2018. With a
view to strengthening its staff’s understanding of tax regulations applicable
in Malaysia, the Group has expanded its finance department with more
staff with accounting and tax expertise to handle matters in relation to
goods and services tax, and its staff is required to seek advice from the
Royal Malaysian Customs Department, other tax authorities and/or tax
consultant whenever there are new tax laws or regulations.
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Laws and Regulations relating to Data Security and
Personal Information Protection

The Group completed its acquisition of 51% of the equity interest in
Qingdao Yongbao in July 2021. Qingdao Yongbao is principally engaged
in the provision of outsourced insurance risk analysis services and
insurance marketing services. Qingdao Yongbao'’s businesses in the PRC
are subject to the PRC Data Security Law, the PRC Personal Information
Protection Law and a series of relevant industry regulations and policies of
the PRC. The PRC Data Security Law imposes data security and privacy
obligations on entities and individuals carrying out data activities (including
activities outside the PRC) that may affect national security, such as
data transmissions. The PRC Data Security Law protects personal data
security in general by requiring internet service providers to collect data
in accordance with PRC laws. The PRC Personal Information Protection
Law sets out the regulatory framework for handling and protecting
personal information and transmission of personal information. The PRC
Personal Information Protection Law protects individual privacy in general
by requiring internet service providers to obtain consents from internet
users prior to the collection, use or disclosure of internet users’ personal
data. The specific requirements of this recent law remain to be clarified by
the Cyberspace Administration of China.

The Group has internal policies in place to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations, and to make corresponding changes in its operations
in accordance with the updates of the relevant regulations and policies
by the government and regulatory agencies to cooperate with those
regulations and policies, so as to achieve legal compliance in its
operations. For the management and control of policy and regulatory
risks, the Group will, if considered necessary, obtain legal advice from
qualified legal entities with relevant industry experience to review the
Group’s business in the PRC to reduce relevant risks. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not subject to any non-
compliance investigations or claims relating to data security or personal
information protection in the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is not subject to any specific environmental laws and
regulations set by the Malaysian Government with respect to the Group’s
operation. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group’s operations do
not have any material adverse impact on the environment. However, the
Group, as an outsourced service provider, is required to use a substantial
amount of paper for the printing of documents such as leaflets, letters,
envelopes and documentation for our customers, which are sent to
clients of our customers for, among other things, marketing purposes
and record keeping. As part of the Group’s commitment to environmental
sustainability, the Group strives to market our digital solutions to
customers and adopt other sustainable printing options such as the
use of recycled paper instead of virgin paper, the use of energy efficient
equipment and double-sided printing. On the other hand, the Directors
believe that the Group’s software, if accepted and implemented by our
customers, will reduce paper usage as we would enable many of the
outsourced services to be digitised.

Whilst the Group does not directly produce pollutants that directly affect
the environment, we have implemented internal policies to reduce the
Group’s carbon footprint such as reducing energy consumption through:

0} Installing energy efficient lighting and ensuring lights are switched off
when out of use either manually or through automatic sensors;

(ii) Switching off equipment or using automatic power shutdown
systems; and

(i)  Air cooling (actions include but are not limited to: regular
maintenance of air cooling technologies and optimal timing
controls).

For more details of our environmental, social and governance impacts
and practices, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of the Company which is prepared in accordance with Appendix
C2 (formerly Appendix 27) to the Listing Rules and published on the same
date as this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders to meet
its immediate and long-term goals.

Employees: The Group’s employees are invaluable assets of the
Group and it is dedicated to managing human resources. The Group
remunerates its employees with wages, bonuses and other staff
benefits. The Group offers on the job training, as well as encourages
staff development by providing financial subsidies to selected high
potential employees for external training or courses. For the employees
of the Group, we have registered our staff for social insurance and have
made relevant contributions in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

Suppliers: The Group’s material suppliers which are mainly based in
Malaysia mainly supply paper products such as paper, envelopes, and
printing consumables. The Group also sources services suppliers for its
posting needs and printing needs which cannot be completed in-house.
The Group has not entered into any long-term supply agreements with
any suppliers or service providers and will purchase or engage them
on an as required basis. The length of relationship between the Group
and most of its material suppliers is over 10 years. The credit period
granted by the material suppliers to the Company (if any) is generally 30
days. The subsequent settlement of the trade payables to the Group’s
suppliers since 31 December 2023 and up to 28 March 2024 (the
publication date of the Company’s annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2023) is approximately RM4.8 million, which
accounted for approximately 99.6% of the Group’s net trade payables
as at 31 December 2023. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group had relied on the single Largest Supplier which accounted
for approximately 70.4% of the Group’s total purchases. The services
provided by the Largest Supplier were postal services. According to
publicly available information, the Largest Supplier holds an exclusive
concession to provide mail services through its network of branches and
mini post offices in Malaysia. The Group believes that its reliance on the
Largest Supplier will continue and such reliance will not have any material
impact on the Group’s operations, as the Group does not believe that it
is subject to any different treatment or is subject to any different risks as
compared with its competitors who also require postal services. In any
event, the Group believes that its relationship with the Largest Supplier is
mutually beneficial and the only market practice available.

C-Link Squared Limited
Annual Report 2023

@

HES B FERRAEMBFHEN
ElES

AEEPARRE HERH EAREMFHE
RERTHGHEREAHREBEENES
Mo

EBE AERREEASTEEANESEE IS
EEGANBERERE - sEEREESZNIE
TEAREMES R AEEDE TRETH
BilkEBAEEENSE N RERHY BE
MHESMINEIEIN R EUSBE T HRE -
HRAEENES  ~EBRBAERERER
RETETHEREREFHBRMER

HER AEEMNMEMEERETEUSERAD
BAKE TEHERERS (FIUNARR FH K
ITENFER) - AEB N AAEBNBIEZTEAN
AL NITEIRE RS KRR M E o A&
SETHATAHERIRBREREEIIIEANE
HAHERBERTRERKEIERRE K&
EHE K28R EE I RR FREBE10
Fo-RBRMEEERRTARBNEER WA)
— R A30K - H2023F 12331 HEE R EH £2024
F£3528H (BIAA B &ME E£2023F12831H
IFFE2FXEAEHE FAEEHEENE
SENRIEBENREAECHENB48EESTE
1o (R EE R 2023F 12831 H B ZEMRIE
SERARIAY99.6% o R E E2023FE 12831 H IEE
B NREBKBNRE —RAMER ZHERG
R E EAERBEREM4970.4% © B A FE RS P42 14
IRBABEBREE - RIBEABRER RAHERZE
BEREHE BEBEARRATNS ZH
18 RN B B A4S IR I BB R AR TS o AEE R A
EHRARERANKBREEEER BZKB
FTEHAERNESEMTENERTLE LD
HRAEERA AEENEFENSEIK
R > MAEBE B EZIMERER
o NEARZEMAREER - WHUWMA > RE
EHEEHARAEERNBMGAEEER A
BHHE—THNTHIHBER



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFTHRS

Customers: The Group’s major customers are companies from the
banking, insurance and retail industries which are mainly based in
Malaysia and the PRC and deal with a large volume of end-customers
on a daily basis. The Group’s stable business is based on its long-
term relationship with its major customers and providing them with
outsourced document management services, enterprise software
solutions, outsourced insurance marketing services and outsourced
insurance risk analysis services. As the Group possesses the technical
capability, flexibility of customising its software to meet its customers’
specific needs and ability to provide accurate and efficient processing,
the Group believes that this has led a majority of its customers to return
and continue using its services by renewing the service contracts when
they expire. As such, the Group engages in regular discussions with its
customers to understand their potential needs so as to develop and
customise potential software solutions for them. The length of relationship
between most of our major customers in Malaysia and the Group is over
10 years. The credit period granted by the major customers is generally
30 days. The subsequent settlement of the trade receivables from the
Group’s customers since 31 December 2023 and up to 28 March 2024
(the publication date of the Company’s annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2023) is approximately RM15.6
million, which accounted for approximately 79.5% of the Group’s net
trade receivables as at 31 December 2023. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group had relied on its five largest single customers.
The Group’s aggregate sales to its five largest single customers
accounted for approximately 53.1% of the Group’s total revenue and in
particular, sales to the Group’s largest single customer accounted for
approximately 22.3% of the Group’s total revenue. For more details on the
Group’s reliance on its major customers and the measures undertaken to
manage such risk, please refer to the paragraph headed “Principal Risks
and Uncertainties” above in the Directors’ Report in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers,
customers and/or stakeholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, we have complied with all
applicable Code Provisions set forth in the CG Code, except for the
following deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. For further
information on the Company’s corporate governance practices and details
of the deviations, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 59 to 85 of this annual report.
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Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the period between 1 January 2023 to 30 April
2023, Mr. F Ling held the roles of the chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Ling had been primarily responsible for corporate
strategic planning and overall business development of our Group since
he founded our Group in the 2000s until 30 April 2023. Taking into
account the continuation of management and the implementation of
our business strategies, the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) then considered it was most suitable for Mr. F Ling to
hold both the positions of chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer, and such arrangements were beneficial and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Since 1 May 2023, following
Mr. F Ling’s resignation, Mr. Ma Shengcong has been holding the roles
of the chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Ma has
been primarily responsible for overseeing and monitoring the Group’s daily
operations and participating in formulating and assessing the Company’s
goals and objectives. Mr. Ma is also responsible for developing strategic
business plans and exploring new business opportunities for the
Company’s subsidiary in the PRC, which is principally engaged in the
operation of outsourced insurance risk analysis services, insurance
marketing services, and the distribution and sales of medical equipment
business. Taking into account the significance of effective management
and the implementation of our business strategies, the Directors (including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors) consider it is most suitable for
Mr. Ma to hold both the positions of chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer, and the existing arrangements are beneficial and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Under the leadership of Mr. F Ling (up to 30 April 2023) and Mr. Ma (since
1 May 2023), the Board is and has been able to work effectively and
perform its responsibilities with key and appropriate issues discussed in
a timely manner. In addition, all major decisions are made in consultation
with members of the Board and relevant Board committees, and there
are three Independent Non-Executive Directors on the Board offering
independent perspectives. The Board is therefore of the view that there
are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers
and authorities between the Board and the management of the Company.

To maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of
the Company, the Board will review the effectiveness of the structure
and composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, and will continue to review and consider splitting the roles
of chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer at a time when it
is appropriate by taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a
whole.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors as at the Latest Practicable Date,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules at all times during the
year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 186 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 have been audited by CCTH CPA Limited, the independent auditor
of the Company. Ernst & Young PLT resigned as the independent auditor
of the Company on 28 September 2023 due to disagreement with the
Company on the proposed audit fee for the year ended 31 December
2023 and CCTH CPA Limited has been appointed as the independent
auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Ernst & Young PLT with effect from 21 November 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 December 2023, Core Squared Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the SPA with Ms. Zou and Ms.
Le for the Acquisition. The Acquisition was completed on 26 January
2024 and Sun Join has become a indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Pursuant to the SPA, for the purpose of settlement
of the consideration, the Company issued and allotted 284,550,898
and 189,700,599 Consideration Shares to Sun Join Capital Investment
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Ms. Zou and Sun Join Venture
Management Limited, which was wholly-owned by Ms. Le, respectively,
at HK$1.0, representing an aggregate of approximately 16.50% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the Consideration Shares.

Save as disclosed herein, no significant subsequent event was
undertaken by the Group after 31 December 2023 and up to the Latest
Practicable Date.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETHRS

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in the information of the Directors pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the Company’s interim
report 2023, up to the Latest Practicable Date.

Save as disclosed herein, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors
confirm that no information is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Ma Shengcong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXERHRS

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE GROUP’S
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DURING THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

The major development in the Group’s corporate governance during the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out as follows.

Pursuant to changes to Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, the following
corporate governance policies have been updated or introduced (as the
case may be) and adopted by the Board effective from 1 January 2022:

0] Board diversity policy;

(i) Shareholders’ communication policy;

(i) Whistleblowing policy;

(iv)  Anti-corruption policy;

(v)  Statement on purpose, values and strategy; and

(vi)  Policy on obtaining independent views and input.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholder value through
good corporate governance. The Company has developed and
implemented sound corporate governance policies and measures, and
the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the CG Code so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

The Company has complied with all applicable Code Provisions as set out
in the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2023, except the
deviation from Code Provision C.2.1.
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TEELRHRS

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the period between 1 January 2023 to 30 April
2023, Mr. F Ling held the roles of the chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. F Ling had been primarily responsible for corporate
strategic planning and overall business development of our Group since he
founded our Group in the 2000s until 30 April 2023. Taking into account
the continuation of management and the implementation of our business
strategies, the Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors)
then considered it was most suitable for Mr. F Ling to hold both the
positions of chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, and
such arrangements were beneficial and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. Since 1 May 2023, following Mr. F Ling’s
resignation, Mr. Ma has been holding the roles of the chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Ma has been primarily responsible for
overseeing and monitoring the Group’s daily operations and participating in
formulating and assessing the Company’s goals and objectives. Mr. Ma is
also responsible for developing strategic business plans and exploring new
business opportunities for the Company’s subsidiary in the PRC, which is
principally engaged in the operation of outsourced insurance risk analysis
services, insurance marketing services, and the distribution and sales of
medical equipment business. Taking into account the significance of effective
management and the implementation of our business strategies, the
Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) consider it is
most suitable for Mr. Ma to hold both the positions of chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer, and the existing arrangements are beneficial
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Under the leadership of Mr. F Ling (up to 30 April 2023) and Mr. Ma (since 1
May 2023), the Board is and has been able to work effectively and perform its
responsibilities with key and appropriate issues discussed in a timely manner.
In addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with members of
the Board and relevant Board committees, and there are three Independent
Non-Executive Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives. The
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to
ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities between the Board and
the management of the Company.

To maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of
the Company, the Board will review the effectiveness of the structure
and composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, and will continue to review and consider splitting the roles
of chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer at a time when it
is appropriate by taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a
whole.
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COMPANY’S CULTURE

The Board believes that corporate culture underpins the long-term
business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A
strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable
performance and fuffil its role as a responsible corporate citizen. The
Company is committed to developing a positive and progressive culture
that is built on its purpose, values and strategy.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company continued to
strengthen its cultural framework by focusing on the following:

e  Purpose:

The Company envisions to become an established multinational
outsourced document management services provider, related
software application and enterprise software solutions developer,
outsourced insurance risk analysis and marketing service provider.

e Values:
Technological advancement

The Company creates value and goodwill through technological
innovation.

Engagement

The Company prides itself on keeping its Shareholders engaged
and informed in the markets and communities in which the
Company operates.

Excellence

The Company strives to deliver excellent services in an effective and
efficient manner.

Mutual Respect

The Company strives for working internally and externally in a
collegiate environment based on trust, collaboration and respect.
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e Strategy:

(i) Grow and enhance our Malaysia core business;

(i) Strengthen our corporate reputation in Malaysia, Singapore,
the PRC and beyond;

(i)  Accelerate our success internationally; and

(iv)  Advocate the importance of harnessing technology in
business processes.

The Board sets and promotes its corporate culture incorporating its purpose,
values and strategy above and expects and requires all employees to
reinforce. All of our new employees are required to attend orientation and
training programs so that they may better understand our corporate culture,
structure and policies, learn relevant laws and regulations, and raise their
quality awareness. In addition, from time to time, the Company will invite
external experts to provide training to our management personnel to improve
their relevant knowledge and management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, values
and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for
securities transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquires with
all Directors (including the existing Directors and the former Directors
who had been Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023), all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should include a
balanced composition of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Non-Executive Directors so that the Board has a
strong independent element, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. Currently, the Board comprises seven Directors, including two
Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Details of their composition by category are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Shengcong (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Ying

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan
Dr. Wu Xianyi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Zeng Jianhua
Mr. Yang Junhui
Mr. Qian Jianguang

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors, none of
the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) with any other Directors or
any chief executive.

EFETRFXSNRET

KRB ERMEETAEFAERETESS
NiITATR - KA BES (BN E E20234F
12831 EFEEEESNIREESTRAIEE
B IEFHEETEHER 2BREFHIED BER
B E2023F 12831 HILFEH B ETIRESF]]
FrE BT E TR F 2] o

FABBKRBAESTEREFRATES IFH
TEFERBUFNTESNHIHES KM
EFERASEBIN UEAMFERBILY
e-BA EFEMRtREFMAN TEMLH
TEE MBFRTEEFR=RBILFNTE
F o REFRER B DHEMFENT ¢

RITES
BERKE EFELERTHAE)
RER L

ERITES
Ling Sheng Shyan?t &
SRERiEL

BIERITES
BEESLT
HEERE
BRI kE

BREFNEEFFRNEAFRIEFTRSREE
BREE —fB -GEFREMKEEIN  BEE
FHEAMHEMEFHENESTRASERE
AN R (BEM - #5 KRHEMEXR
HERARRR) o

C-Link Squared Limited
2023 FR

(&)



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEELRHRS

Responsibilities

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the Company. The
Board and the management of the Company are charged with promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors, including Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-
Executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution from each Director in
performing his/her responsibilities to the Company and whether he/she
has sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The Board
has general powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business, in particularly, decision in all major matters relating to policy,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. The day-to-day operations and
management are delegated by the Board to the management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as determined by
the Board.

Directors’ and Officers Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the
Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed under a service agreement or a letter of
appointment for a term of three years. For more details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” in the Directors’ report
in this annual report.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with Article 108(b) of the Articles, the Directors to retire by
rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the number required)
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election.
Any Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in the
three years preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation
at such annual general meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or were last
re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any additional Directors appointed by the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed under
such Article shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an annual general
meeting.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

The Directors as at 31 December 2023, namely Mr. Ma Shengcong, Ms.
Zhang Ying, Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan, Dr. Wu Xianyi, Dr. Zeng Jianhua, Mr.
Yang Junhui and Mr. Qian Jianguang, had complied with Code Provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2023 by
participating in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, through attending trainings and/or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business and/or to directors’
duties and responsibilities. In particular, in compliance with Code
Provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, during the year ended 31 December
2023, the Company has arranged in-house trainings on relevant Hong
Kong laws and the Listing Rules in the form of a seminar for all Directors
(including the Director who was newly appointed in 2023), and such
trainings were conducted by the legal advisor of the Company; the
relevant training materials had also been distributed to all Directors, and
all Directors had attended the in-house trainings. The trainings for the
new Director covered topics including the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director, the disclosure obligations under the laws of
Hong Kong, the requirements of disclosable transactions and connected
transactions etc. under the Listing Rules. In addition, the Company has
provided all the Directors with relevant training materials covering topics
including but not limited to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director, relevant Hong Kong laws, the Listing Rules and its
updates, corporate governance, environmental, social and governance
reporting and anti-corruption, and all the Directors have perused such
training materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Company has appointed Ms. Zhang Ying as the Executive Director
with effect from 1 May 2023. Ms. Zhang Ying had obtained legal advice
that are applicable to her as a director of a listed Company and the
possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving false
information to the Stock Exchange as referred to in Rule 3.09D of the
Listing Rules on 28 April 2023, before her appointment became effective.
Ms. Zhang Ying has confirmed that she understood her obligations as a
director of a listed company.
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Meetings of Board, Committees Meetings and
General Meetings

Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in
person or through electronic means of communication.

During the year, there were six Board meetings held, at which the
Directors approved, among other things, the annual results and annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the interim
results of the Group for the period ended 30 June 2023.

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings on regular
and ad hoc basis where practicable. Notices of no less than fourteen
days are given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with
an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular
meeting. For other Board meetings and Board committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company.

The agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the Board
meetings or Board committee meetings to ensure that the Directors have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
Board meetings or Board committee meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman of the meeting
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board and
the Board committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors or dissenting views expressed (if any). Draft and
final versions of minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee
meeting are sent to the Directors for comments and record within a
reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes
of the Board meetings are open for inspection by the Directors.
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Number of meeting(s) attended/number of meeting(s) held during the year

TREJNENHENEBRYRITNEE

is set out in the below table: REX .
General Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director meeting® Board® Committee> Committee> Committee®
S PN -E BEEE BRZEY HNEEE RELZER
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Ma Shengcong' BaRELE 2/2 6/6 N/A R EF N/A FEH N/A R EH
Ms. Zhang Ying RE X T (722023F 2/2 3/4 N/A FEH N/A REH N/A RE
(appointed on 1 May 2023) 5B1HEZ)
Mr. F Ling F LingZc 4 (1220234 N/A 3 22 NATEBA 1/1 1/1
(ceased on 1 May 2023) 5H1HABED
Mr. W Ling W Ling%c 4 (74202345 N/A FEH 2/2 N/A R 11 11
(ceased on 1 May 2023) S5H1HAHBED
Non-Executive Directors:  JEHITES :
Mr. S Ling S Lingse 4 2/2 6/6 N/A FEH N/A REH N/A RE
Dr. Wu Xianyi SERELT 1/2 5/6 N/A FEH N/A REH N/A RE
Independent Non-Executive B IFRITES :
Directors:
Dr. Zeng Jianhua? BEEL? 2/2 6/6 4/4 1/1 11
Mr. Yang Junhui HERSLE 2/2 6/6 5/5 11 11
Mr. Qian Jianguang 237 lb s 2/2 6/6 5/5 11 11
Mr. Lee Yan Kit (ceased on ERREEE (R2028358 NATEA 11 11 N/A R EH N/A R EH
27 March 2023) 3R27TBABET)

i Mr. Ma Shengcong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
1 May 2023.

s Dr. Zeng Jianhua was appointed as a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
with effect from 27 March 2023.

e The attendance of the Directors refers to the number of meetings held during

their respective tenure.
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Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is key to good
corporate governance. The Company has put in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board and ensure that
independent views are available to the Board. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors currently make up more than one-third of the Board
and the members of the Audit Committee are all Independent Non-
Executive Directors, which are in full compliance with the independence
requirements under the Listing Rules. Each of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee is chaired by Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The remuneration of Independent Non-Executive
Directors is subject to regular review to maintain competitiveness and to
ensure that it is commensurate with their responsibilities and workload.
The independence of each Independent Non-Executive Director is
assessed upon his appointment and annually.

The Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at the
Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate. External
independent professional advice is available to all Directors, including
Independent Non-Executive Directors, whenever deemed necessary. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors have consistently demonstrated
strong commitment and the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge
their responsibilities at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and informal
means whereby Independent Non-Executive Directors can express their
views in an open manner, and, where necessary, in a confidential manner.
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Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company at all
times fulfilled the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of
Independent Non-Executive Directors must represent at least one-third
of the Board and should not be less than three, and that at least one of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors have been independent and met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2023.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Each of the Board committees operates under defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

We have established our Audit Committee in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on 11 March 2020 with its terms
of reference revised on 1 January 2023. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are mainly to assist our Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of our financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Junhui, Mr. Qian Jianguang and Dr.
Zeng Jianhua. Mr. Yang Junhui is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

C-Link Squared Limited
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, five Audit Committee
meetings were held at which the Audit Committee, among other things,
the Audit Committee had (i) reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022; (ii)
reviewed the internal control and risk management system of the Group;
(iii) reviewed the interim results of the Group for the period ended 30 June
2023; and (iv) considered the appointment of the Company’s independent
auditor, CCTH CPA Limited, following resignation of the former
independent auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young PLT, with effect
from 28 September 2023. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function (which is outsourced to
an external consultant).

Among which, the Audit Committee had one meeting with Ernst & Young
PLT, the former independent auditor of the Company. During the year
ended 31 December 2023 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Audit Committee also had two meetings with CCTH CPA Limited, the
current independent auditor of the Company, to review the audit plan and
strategy for the year ended 31 December 2023 and review the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023. The Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the re-appointment of the independent auditor of the
Company.

Remuneration committee

We established our Remuneration Committee in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on 11 March 2020 with its
terms of reference revised on 1 January 2023. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are mainly to evaluate the performance of
our Directors and Senior Management and determine the remuneration
package of our Directors and members of our Senior Management.

Currently, the Remuneration Committee consists of three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Junhui, Mr. Qian Jianguang
and Dr. Zeng Jianhua and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Ma
Shengcong. Mr. Yang Junhui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, () one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held at which the Remuneration Committee
mainly reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and Senior
Management, the remuneration of Directors and the remuneration of
new Directors of the Company, and assessed the performance of the
Executive Directors; and (i) the Remuneration Committee has approved
the terms of a new Executive Directors’s service contract.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 11 of the Notes to the consolidated

financial statements in this annual report.
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The annual remuneration of the Senior Management of the Group by band
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

KREESHREEBNEZE2023F12831HIEF
ENEEHFMEESSIIMT

Remuneration of the Senior Management =R EIEE B EEN
Number of
Senior
Management
=T
EEEAY
HK$1 — HK$500,000 17875 E500,0008 7T 2

Save as disclosed in this annual report, (i) no remuneration was paid to
our Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join,
or upon joining, our Group; (i) no compensation was paid to, or receivable
by, our Directors or past Directors or the five highest paid individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2023 for the loss of office as director
of any member of our Group or of any other office in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of our Group; and (i) none of
our Directors waived any emoluments during the same period.

Further to the above, no Director or none of the five highest paid
individuals has been paid in cash or shares or otherwise by any person
either to induce him to become, or to qualify him as a Director, or
otherwise for service rendered by him in connection with the promotion or
formation of us save as disclosed in this annual report.

Nomination committee

We have established our Nomination Committee in compliance with Rule
3.27A of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on 11 March 2020 with
its terms of reference revised on 1 January 2023. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are mainly to make recommendations to our
Board on the appointment of our Directors and members of our Senior
Management.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Junhui, Mr. Qian Jianguang and Dr.
Zeng Jianhua and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Ma Shengcong. Mr.
Ma Shengcong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held to review
the Board composition, assess the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors, and make recommendation to the Board for re-
election of Directors in the 2023 AGM and the nomination of new
directors of the Company.

()
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In this regard, the Board has adopted the board
diversity policy. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered taking into account a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity in the Board.

The Board has also set measurable objectives to achieve board diversity,
which includes the following: (i) the selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service, (i) the Nomination
Committee will discuss and make discussion annually, and, where
necessary, reach consensus on measurable objectives for achieving
board diversity. It will provide its recommendation to the Board for
adoption, which includes at least one of the Directors having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and at least one Director having intensive experience of the
industry on which the business of the Group is engaged in, (i) the Board
shall have at least one Director of a different gender. Such Director shall
possess the skills, experience and talent necessary for the operation of
the Company, and (iv) to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will recommend potential candidates for the Board
so as to realise gender diversity. The ultimate decision will be based on
objective criteria, merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board, taking into consideration of the Company’s corporate
strategies and business operation.

The Board considered that the aforementioned measurable goals have
been achieved satisfactorily during the year ended 31 December 2023.
The Nomination Committee has conducted an annual review of the
board diversity policy and the Nomination Committee is satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the board diversity policy.
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Gender and Workforce Diversity

To achieve and/or maintain diversity (including gender diversity), the
Nomination Committee will identify and recommend potential candidates
to the Board so as to promote and realise gender diversity. Specifically,
when selecting potential candidates for the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Board will, inter alia, (i) consider the current ability,
diversity and representation level of different gender in the Board and
senior management when making recommendation on nominees and
the succession plan of the Board and Senior Management, and (i) take
reference to the Code of Practice on Employment published by Hong
Kong Equal Opportunities Commission and other manuals in other
applicable jurisdictions from time to time, so as to consider the standards
in promoting diversity. The Group adheres to the principle of fairness in
the recruitment procedures, and does not implement any restriction on
gender, ethnicity, nationality and territory. The Nomination Committee
adopts the above measures and reviews the profiles of the potential
candidates of Board members against the above selection criteria in order
to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board to achieve
gender diversity.

The gender ratio of male to female in the workforce (including Senior
Management) for the year ended 31 December 2023 is 3:5. The
Company considers that gender diversity is rather balanced and has
been achieved in its workforce generally. The Group aims to continue
maintaining a more balanced gender diversity in the workforce by
promoting such diversity during recruitment.

For further details of gender ratio and initiatives taken to improve gender
diversity, together with the relevant data, please refer to the disclosure
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company
which is published on the same date as this annual report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which aims to:

o set out the criteria and process in the selection, recommendation,
nomination and appointment of Directors;

° ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

o ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

o character, reputation and integrity;

° qualifications, experience and accomplishments, including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and other directorships and significant commitments;

° requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent by reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

° Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted by
the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board;

o any other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of Directors and
succession planning; and

o such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.
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Nomination Procedures

(A

Appointment of New Director

M

(i)

(v)

(v)

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of a new Director, evaluate
the biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate based on the criteria as set out in the above
paragraph of “Criteria” to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company (including but not limited
to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives) and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall then recommend the
appointment of an appropriate candidate for directorship
and the candidate shall provide his/her written consent (a) to
be appointed as a Director, and (b) to the public disclosure
of his/her personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing
for election as a Director.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such candidate
based on the above paragraph of “Criteria” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship and
where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to the Shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of Director at the general
meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to the recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting.
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(B) Re-Election of Director at General Meeting

()

(i)

(i)

Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall review the retiring Director’s
overall contribution and service to the Company, including
his/her attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine
whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in above paragraph.

(B) MEREAGLEZREE

(M

(i

(i)
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(v) the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then vy REZEGR HWEFTFERMRNK
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the RAGLEEESTNIREMREIR
proposed re-election of the Director at the general meeting. HiEsEe

() The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating v) HEBEEARRKREATLESSE
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election BENFIEEE EFTHBERKR
at any general meeting. ERE o

Regular Review E HAtE Y

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on: RLZEZEERE TR -
RABERNE  UEREEKRQBES
MU R A IR EARBEER R

WEEELRER, &

(i) the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it remains (i)
relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both current
regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practice;

and

(i)  the structure, size and composition of the Board and where (i) ZEFEHNEE - RERERURETEEE
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board HRnEERREEITER UTSARE
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business TERBRRTGEBREE-
needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TEERERHBAEE

et
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The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and Senior Management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate
governance report.

C-Link Squared Limited
2023 FR

()



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEELRHRS

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

CCTH CPA Limited is appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees for the audit
of the annual financial statements of the Group totalled HK$1,000,000
(excluding the out-of-pocket expenses on the audit service).

There were no fees charged in respect of the non-auditing services for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and the results of its operations and cash
flow during the Reporting Period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. A statement from the independent auditors about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out on pages 91 to 93 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks, and safeguard the Group’s assets and
Shareholders’ interests, and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems on an annual basis so as to
ensure that the internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The Company outsourced its internal audit function to an external
consultant who reports to the Board. The internal audit function primarily
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at least, an annual
basis.
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The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the Latest
Practicable Date, the Board has reviewed on an annual basis (i) the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks and the Group’s
ability to respond to changes in its business and the external environment;
(i) any significant control failings or weaknesses which have resulted in
unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that have had, could have had,
or may in the future have, a material impact on the Group’s financial
performance or condition; and (jii) the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group to ensure that a sound
system is maintained and operated by the management in compliance
with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit,
financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to the Company’s
environmental, social and governance performance and reporting. The
review was made with reference to discussions with the management of
the Company and the assessment conducted by the Audit Committee.
The Board believes that the existing internal control system is adequate
and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes its obligations
under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules seriously. The Company
has adopted a Continuous Disclosure Compliance Policy which sets out
guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to
ensure inside information of the Group is disseminated to the public in an
equal and timely manner. Briefing session is held regularly for officers to
facilitate their understanding and compliance with such policy.
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Anti-corruption Policy

The Company does not tolerate any form of bribery, whether direct or
indirect, by, or of, its Directors, officers, employees, agents or consultants
or any persons or companies acting for it or on its behalf. The Company
adopts an anti-corruption policy in promoting and supporting anti-
corruption laws and regulations, as well as assisting its employees in
recognising circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
being involved in corruption or unethical business conduct, so as to avoid
such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance if
necessary.

The anti-corruption policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, and any
convicted cases will be reported to the Audit Committee or the Board.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company expects and encourages employees of the Group and
those who deal with the Group (e.g., suppliers, customers, creditors
and debtors) to raise concerns to the Audit Committee, in confidence
and anonymity, any suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice
concerning the Group. The Company adopts a whistleblowing policy
that provide (i) reporting channels; (i) guidance on reporting possible
improprieties; and (i) reassurances to whistleblowers of the protection
that the Group will extend to them in the formal system.

The whistleblowing policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, and any
suspected cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company to ensure that the Board procedures, and
all applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed. The company
secretary of the Company is Ms. Chan Lok Yee. Ms. Chan has over nine
years of experience in the provision of a full range of company secretarial
and compliance services and has held positions in various corporate
secretarial companies in Hong Kong. She is currently a senior manager
of corporate services in Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, and is
currently serving a portfolio of clients, including public listed companies
and private companies. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2023. Our
Senior Management, Ms. Zhang Ying, is one of the contact persons and
the primary contact person of the Company for Ms. Chan.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal forum for
dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in the proceedings and ask questions about the resolutions
being proposed and the operations of the Group. The Articles allows a
Shareholder entitled to attend and vote to appoint more than one proxy
to attend and vote on behalf of the Shareholder and also provides that a
proxy needs not be a Shareholder.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
Shareholders’ meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
to vote at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to convene such
meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
said written requisitions can be addressed to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company by mail to Room 1901, 19/F, Lee Garden One,
33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Cay, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Act. However,
Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow Article 64 of the
Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including
a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of Article
64 are set out above. As regards proposing a person for election as a
Director, the procedures are available on the website of the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD AND CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests and
comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to Room 1901,
19/F, Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or
by email to investor_relations@cgroup.com.my.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings by
mail to the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or by
telephone at (852) 2862 8555, who has been appointed by the Company
to deal with Shareholders for share registration and related matters.

POLICY ON OBTAINING INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

In March 2022, the Board adopted a policy on obtaining independent
views and input (the “Obtaining Independent Views Policy”), reflecting
the Company’s commitment to high corporate governance standard,
and making good corporate governance an essential component of our
corporate culture. Details of the Obtaining Independent Views Policy are
as follows:

° The Board, Board committees or individual Directors may
seek such independent professional advice, views and input
as considered necessary to fulfill their responsibilities and in
exercising independent judgement when making decisions in
furtherance of their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense (the
“Mechanism”);
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° In the event that independent professional advice, views and

input are considered necessary, the Board, Board committees
or individual Directors shall communicate with the Senior
Management or the company secretary of the Company to initiate
the Mechanism, providing background and details of the relevant
incidents and/ or transactions, and the issues involved which
would require independent views and input. They may direct any
questions, queries, concerns or specific advice to be sought to the
Senior Management or company secretary of the Company who
will then contact the Company’s professional advisers (including
lawyers, accountants, external auditors, internal control advisers) or
other independent professional parties to obtain such independent
professional advice within a reasonable period of time;

. Any recommendation obtained through the Mechanism should be
properly recorded and provided to other Directors of the Board;

° The Board can have full access to all explanation and information
provided by Senior Management which the relevant Board member
considers appropriate for the purpose of making an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before his/her
for approval, and performing his/her duties; and

° The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Obtaining Independent Views Policy annually.

All Directors are aware of this policy and the Mechanism. An annual
review of the Obtaining Independent Views Policy has been conducted.
The Board is satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of the
Obtaining Independent Views Policy.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables Shareholders to make the most
informed investment decisions. The goal of our communication activities is
to provide a true and fair view of the Company.

As such, the Company has established a Shareholders’ communication
policy and a range of communication channels between itself and its
Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include (i) the
publication of interim and annual reports and/or dispatching circulars,
notices, and other announcements; (i) the annual general meeting and/or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated and key
information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its stakeholders; and (v) the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders
in respect of all share registration matters.

Under the Company’s Shareholders’ communication policy, the Company
will take steps to solicit and understand the views of its Shareholders
and other stakeholders (including employees, customers, suppliers and
investors). Shareholders may direct questions and communicate their
views on various matters affecting the Company, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors or management of the Company by mail to Room 1901,19/F,
Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or by
email to investor_relations@cgroup.com.my.

The annual general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. Under normal
circumstances, the chairman of the Board and the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the chairmen of the Board committees will
attend the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.
The external auditor of the Company will also attend the annual general
meetings to answer questions about the audit works, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of the auditor.
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The Company has assigned dedicated employees to be in charge of
investor relations, including but not limited to the ensuring of effective
and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders. Furthermore,
any corporate communication issued or to be issued by the Company,
including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, notices
of general meeting, circulars and proxy forms, will be written in plain
language and provided to Shareholders in English and Chinese versions
for easy understanding.

An annual review of the Shareholders’ communication policy has been
conducted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023. Several communication channels between the Company and the
Shareholders are there and they have been working properly. There is
no evidence of unsatisfactory communication between the Company
and Shareholders. The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication policy.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain amendments to
the second amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company have been made and approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 9 June 2023
to reflect the change in the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 Shares of par value
of HK$0.01 each to HK$15,000,000 divided into 4,500,000,000
Shares of par value of one third Hong Kong cent (approximately
HK$0.003333333333) each. Other than the above, there was no change
in the Company’s constitutional documents for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The third amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
with the amendments incorporated are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
REXEEEMHEIRAE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of
C-Link Squared Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C-Link Squared
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 185, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

(1) Impairment assessment of intangible assets

(Refer to Note 3.2(a) — Key sources of estimation uncertainty
- Impairment of non-financial assets and Note 16 - Intangible
assets)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of intangible
assets of the Group amounted to RM6.39 million, representing
18% and 6% of the Group’s total non-current assets and total
assets respectively. The Group is required to perform impairment
assessment for intangible assets whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired or more frequently if the
events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

The Group estimated the recoverable amounts of the intangible
assets based on value in use (“VIU”). Estimating the VIU involves
discounting the estimated future cash inflows and outflows
expected to be derived from the intangible asset to its present value
using an appropriate discount rate.

We identified this as a key audit matter as the VIU determined
using discounted cash flows is complex and involves significant
management judgement and estimates, specifically the key
assumptions on the gross profit margin and discount rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HENER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

(1)

Impairment assessment of intangible assets
(Continued)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of the
intangible assets included:

a) We obtained an understanding of the methodology adopted
by the management in estimating the VIU and assessed
whether such methodology is reasonable;

b) We evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of
the independent valuer engaged by the management;

C) We evaluated the appropriateness of the key assumptions
in the cash flow projections, including yearly growth rates
of revenue, profit margin and management’s expectation of
market conditions by reference to the historical performance,
future business plan of the Group as well as industrial trends;

d) we performed sensitivity analysis on key assumptions that will
significantly affect the recoverable amounts of the intangible
assets; and

e) we evaluated the adequacy of disclosures of key

assumptions to which the outcome of the impairment
assessment is most sensitive.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\ HENER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) AR EZEIE (B)
(2) Revenue from contract with customers (2 RBHREFRIILGHANWE

(Refer to Note 2.17 — Summary of significant accounting
policies: Revenue from contracts with customers and Note 4
- Revenue from contracts with customers)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from the
provision of outsourced document management services which
amounted to RM783.7 million, represented approximately 79%
of the Group’s total revenue. Provision of outsourced document
management services include coding of the format/presentation
of the document; converting raw data into the desired format/
presentation; and delivering the document to the end customers in
an agreed mode.

The provision of outsourced document management services
involves large volumes of job orders and billings, which consist
of individually low value transactions. In addition, the provision of
outsourced document services involves the performance of a series
of works in phases which revenue is recognised at a point in time
when a performance obligation is satisfied.
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We identified revenue on the provision of outsourced document HR LA RSB R E’] BF R &
management services as a key audit matter due to the above BEHRBAERNARRS  BERRM
factors which gave rise to higher risk of material misstatement in the A ERRBEN WG EE 7% fA i 28
timing and amount of revenue recognised. ZEIE

Our procedures in relation to the revenue from contracts with
customers included:

a) we obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
controls over the timing and amount of revenue recognised;

b) we tested the relevant internal controls in place to address

EEMREBEERITULGANKRDET
BiEF 8 !

a) EFTHEEREHEDENERE
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completeness and measurement of revenue recognised; ERERNENTEERTE;

c)  we reviewed samples of contracts between the Group and c) EEH Ei—%@ HMERRFTUN
its customers and inspected samples of documents which = ,\’H IR EFE PR P RE
evidenced the rendering of services to customers; IRFEI SRS ;

d) using data analytics, we performed correlation analysis
between revenue, trade receivables and cash and bank and
balances;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B HENER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

(2) Revenue from contract with customers
(Continued)

e) we performed cash anchor testing by selecting
samples of cash receipts during the year and traced to
acknowledgement of services by customers and documents
evidencing the delivery of goods or services to customers;

f) we tested samples of documents to establish whether
transactions were recorded in the correct accounting period;
and

Q) we reviewed the appropriateness of journal entries
recognised to accrue for revenue for completed job orders
where billings have not been issued at the period-end.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 30
March 2023.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B\ HENER S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this annual report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B HENER S

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B\ HENER S

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

Ng Kam Fai
Practising Certificate no.: P06573

Unit 15610-1517, 15/F., Tower 2,
Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FerHlER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Group Note RM’000 RM’000
TE R <TER LEH
Revenue from contracts with customers FEEEPITIIAANE 4 93,763 105,680
Cost of sales SHE A (70,856) (82,231)
Gross profit EF 22,907 23,449
Other income Hlk A 6 1,224 1,222
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HRE (130) (113)
Administrative expenses THEREX (25,007) (21,415)
Finance costs BhE A A 7 (459) (446)
(Loss)/profit before tax FRIR AT (B518) iR F) 8 (1,465) 2,697
Income tax expense TSR 13 (1,953) (2,417)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (558) HEF (3,418) 280
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: MTEEEEER (BER)
A
Equity holders of the Company KABIRERFBA (4,249) (807)
Non-controlling interests JEER T 831 1,087
(3,418) 280
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hu2mmks  (85i8)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss in R EAEHIEI S @ E# H4EE 18
subsequent periods: mAYEE
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ~ E BN EHEENERZELE
operations 1,397 (295)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the FREMEEUZE~ (B518)
year, net of tax (#0pR7RIE) 1,397 (295)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEEIEEE (2,021) (15)
Total comprehensive loss for the year L/\—F%IEJT\T&E ANZEEE
attributable to: 4E%E
Equity holders of the Company KNBREFE A (3,339) (586)
Non-controlling interests JEIER T 1,318 571
(2,021) (15)
(Restated)
Gc==zl))
Loss per share attributable to the equity holders ZxA TG ERF A AE(ES R
of the Company: 548 -
— Basic and diluted (RM sen) —BARKREE (LEED) 9 (0.18) (0.03)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an
integral part of the financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R MBI R

As at 31 December 2023 FX2023%F12H31H

2023 2022
20235 20224
Group Note RM’000 RM’000
TEE Ft s F<oHE FLoEH
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment s IERN =Y 14 20,728 20,191
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 3,819 3,150
Intangible assets mEE 16 6,392 4,306
Prepayments TE(TFRIE 18 3,068 4,110
Deferred tax asset IFIEAIEE B 24 736 532
34,743 32,289
Current assets MEIEE
Inventories e 17 617 =
Trade receivables B 5 EREIE 18 19,675 19,774
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ FEFIE & M EMEBWEIE 18 5,026 4,907
Income tax recoverable A Y [EIFTEH 886 864
Cash and bank balances BB RIRTTAER 19 42,673 53,926
68,877 79,471
Total assets BEHEE 103,620 111,760
Equity and liabilities ERRkaE
Current liabilities Bt A=Y=l
Trade payables B EAHIE 20 4,864 3,080
Other payables HpENIE 20 3,316 4,900
Contract liabilities HH8E 21 1,535 1,574
Income tax payable FETFRTSIR 243 710
Loans and borrowings EEVSEEEN 22 2,605 6,552
Lease liabilities GiEN ==X 23 324 82
12,887 16,898
Net current assets REBEERE 55,990 62,573
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RaMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2023 }X2023%F12H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Group Note RM’000 RM’000
TEE Ff 5% F<oHE FLoEH
Non-current liabilities ETRHERE
Loans and borrowings EEVSEEEN 22 4,290 6,831
Lease liabilities fHEaRs 23 353 =
Deferred tax liabilities %EEWE:%% 24 252 172
4,895 7,003
Total liabilities BE4%E 17,782 23,901
Net assets EEFE 85,838 87,859
Capital and reserves attributable to TATIREFEAELZ
equity holders of the Company B4 R k5
Share capital [N 25 4,233 4,233
Reserves 5 76,989 80,328
81,222 84,561
Non-controlling interests JEIERG TS 4,616 3,298
Total equity R AR EE 85,838 87,859
Total equity and liabilities HEKkaEEE 103,620 111,760

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 185 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March 2024 and were signed

on its behalf by:

Ma Shengcong

BEHER
Director

EF

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an

integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

& A 45
nﬂ'\%*&

HEER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

BARREREAER
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
Note 25 26(a) 26(b) 26(c)
B RIFEE At BEffk EREE REEF Ay kiR i 4]
WizE 25 26(a) 26(b) 26(c)
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
*E@ LEH FeER ER LEH LEH ER ER LEH LEH
At 1 January 2023 1#20235181H 4,233 47,227 4,800 92" 1,163 27,046 84,561 3,298 87,859
(Loss)/proft for the year % (§18) /&7 - - - - - (4,249) (4,249) 831 (3418)
Exchange differences on  BEIBINEHRNERER
translation of foreign
operations - - - - 910 - 910 487 1,397
At 31 December 2023 1#2023%125318 4,233 47,221* 4,800* 92+ 2,073* 22,797* 81,222 4,616 85,838
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent
BARREREAER
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
Note 25 26(a) 26(b) 26(c)
BE RIFEE AR BXfifk ERHE REEH Ay Rk REEE
Wizt 25 26(a) 26(b) 26(c)
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
5% TOER TN TOEH  TOEE  TOEE  TOEH  TUEN  TOEE  TomH
At 1 January 2022 202241818 4,233 47,221* 4,800 92" 942* 27,853" 85,147 2,727 87,874
(Loss)/proft for the year £/ (538) /&7 - - - - - (807) (807) 1,087 280
Exchange differences on ~ EESN EBRNER ZE
translation of foreign
operations - - - - 221 - 221 (516) (295)
At 31 December 2022 1#2022%12H318 4,233 47,221* 4,800* 92* 1,163* 27,046 84,561 3,298 87,859
* The reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of RM76,989,000  * ZEREREERAVYBRERANZGEHE

(2022: RM80,328,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an

integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7|-\ Eﬁﬁ;ﬁgﬂ%

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Group Note RM’000 RM’000
EME Fi sk TLEH TLEH
Cash flows from operating activities REETHRBRERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BRIGAT (B518) mF] (1,465) 2,697
Adjustments for: MTFIBEBEHFAEE
Interest income ) E WA 6 (1,068) 812)
Interest expense on term loan THERWH ERXZ 7 374 407
Interest expense on overdraft B EMXZ 7 1 1
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGENE 7 13 8
Amortisation of transaction costs R A H 7 71 20
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)¥ R &R HITE 8,14 1,147 1,527
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 8,15 215 270
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ESH 8,16 771 986
Allowance/(reversal) for unutilised leave RIER R AR #E65, (B [E) 8 35 (42)
Bad debts written off 8 IR AR
— trade receivables - BEEWEIE 8 590 351
Net unrealised losses in foreign currency REIFIMERSIE/ERE 8 253 184
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade B ZEWFIBTEEAE E 18
receivables BE 8,18 245 9
Operating cash flows before changes in SESSEHIKERERE
working capital 1,182 5,616
Increase in inventories FEEM (615) =
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B S EWERIE dgm) R (546) 1,000
Decrease in other receivables Hh g R IE R/ 1,460 3,563
Increase in trade payables B 5 (IR IaE 0 1,785 189
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HAhFEITIE GRiZL) 180 (1,107) 1,027
Decrease in contract liabilities sHaERELD (121) (1,332)
Decrease in amounts due from/to related FEUR,FE(T RAE: 5 RUE R
parties (30) 7)
Cash flows generated from operations REEHRGRERE 2,008 10,056
Tax paid, net of tax refunded BRI NRERRR (2,639) (4,938)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from &EES (FrA) /PSR E
operating activities MEFEE (631) 5,118
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRERER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2023 2022
20235 20224
Group Note RM’000 RM’000
wER Fi s F<EH TLEH
Cash flows from investing activities REZHFFFRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE BEARE (1,684) (14,428)
Purchases of intangible assets BEREFEEE (2,857) (2,308)
Interest received B UF] 8 1,068 812
Withdrawal in financial asset at fair value RiZAFE ABmBI &R
through profit or loss BENRE - 3,000
Withdrawal of fixed deposit Bl EHATERR 2,065 40,566
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from KREES FrA) /FriERE
investing activities TREIFRE (1,408) 27,645
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBFRGIRERE
Interest paid EHE 30 (375) 417)
Repayment of loans and borrowings BEEMKRER 30 (6,559) (2,841)
Repayment of lease liabilities BiEREAE 30 (182) (204)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEFEFTARERE TR (7,116) (3,462)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash REKRIREZEEY GAL)
equivalents prh I PR (9,155) 29,301
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURERAESEEY
beginning of the year 51,861 23,653
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEFERE B AR (33) (1,093)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FRRERAETEEY
the year 19 42,673 51,861

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an

integral part of the financial statements.

D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁE%B{TJ—I

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION NEIER

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability ARBElA—RIEHAESEESTMAINE
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The registered office of the REBRAB ARANEMMEERES
Company is located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
headquarters and principal place of business of the Company is Islands ° A A B) AU 48 3 =5 8 B I i 2 it
located at No. 1, Persiaran Sungai Buloh, Taman Industri Sungai 25%No. 1, Persiaran Sungai Buloh, Taman
Buloh, Kota Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia. Industri Sungai Buloh, Kota Damansara,
The principal place of business of the Company in the Hong Kong 47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia °
Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of the People’s KABRAZEAREME (THE)) FES
Republic of China (the “PRC”) is located at Room 1901, 19/F, Lee AITHE (B8 NETEBEEMMATE
Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. 57 8 75 (B3B335 A1) B —HB19181901 = ©
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During AN EEEZHAREZER -NIREH
the Reporting Period, the Company’s principal subsidiaries were N AABNEENBAB BN FIRM
mainly engaged in the provision of outsourced services, including SMFIRR TS > H AR B8 0 5 2k 78 52 42 1 oh
the provision of outsourced document management services and A ERRBEREANGERRER &
related software applications and enterprise software solutions ERERRABERB UL FE (ER
services in Malaysia as well as the provision of outsourced REHRMS  BRIBERAEIN TEIES
insurance risk analysis services and insurance marketing services in BB RPEEPFNITERER) 1RMEI
the PRC (which for the purposes of this annual report only, excludes FIR B J& B o0 A R 75 e 1 B 5 8 AR 75 L
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Macau Special Administrative Region R i R 7 8 e 3 B BRI s 1 o
of the PRC, unless otherwise specified), and the distribution and
sales of medical equipment in the PRC.

100 C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. AFER®
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 A ZEC=F+ZR=+—H ' XTENE
December 2023. REZHIFRW T o
Issued Effective
Place and date of ordinary proportion
incorporation and share of ownership
Company name place of operations capital interest Principal activities
3 AR ST 0 85 T 9 29 BRT  ERFEE
YNSIEY LA ' 22 3t B BB Hmibf  EEES
%
2023 2022
2023 20224
Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM2,400,000 100 100 Outsourced data and
(“Coeus System”) 12 July 2002 document management
services
Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. BT 2,400,000 100 100 SMNFIBIE R ST
(TCoeus System ) 2002FE7H12H LEH BIERFE
Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM2,400,000 100 100 Outsourced data
(“Compugraphic Media”) 10 February 2000 and document
management services
Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. f&2& 7553 2,400,0009 &4 100 100 MR R X EIE
(TCompugraphic Media)* 2000525 10H AR 7%

Qingdao Yongbao Cloud
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao Yongbao”)*

People’s Republic
of China
22 September 2020

HEXKFEREARAT rhEE A RHEAE
G=9=1 <)M 2020F9H22H 2,050,0007C

Qingdao Yongbao was established as a limited liability company in the
PRC.

(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the
year or at the end of the year.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

RMB2,050,000 51.2195 51.2195 Insurance risk analysis,

marketing services and
distribution and sales of
medical equipment

AR 51,2195 51.2195 R B [0 K& 84

AR AR 70 8 e
BRRE

* BEEXRANPERINABREEAF

MfsE -
[0} BEMRBATDNREARERETEMDE
o

FROEESDREAFEXEFTIE
FEIABRNAEREALNEERELZ
ZM}TBH):@T EXRRIHEMKE
NEZEHBERCREENR TR

C-Link Squared Limited

2023 FER WL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'\
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for a financial asset which has
been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated.

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by IASB for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two model Rules

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Except for the amendments to IAS 1, the amendments to
IFRSs in the current year have had no material effect on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current or
prior financial years and/or on the disclosure set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

effective for the current year (Continued)
Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the amendments,
accounting policy information that is standardised
information, or information that only duplicates or summarises
the requirements of the IFRSs, is considered immaterial
accounting policy information and is no longer disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements so as
not to obscure the material accounting policy information
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EREHBEREN @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
2.2 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily 22 ZAEFERHIEMLETZERE

MEBREER ()
FERAEAGHENS RN E
FEERAFEERERAZRET
ERBEAERNBIHREERET U
TEREFHRERRAMATE
BEHBE HWEFERENAEE
RRMBRAMEEMEN —HERE
R ARERRerE—RBRY
BREZIEZEEHREENZENH
BERFHZRE RFENBE
Ko

ZEEIATEN REZSHE
HAREAEEREARS  Ei
EESHERSMEE GHBEER
RBEA AT LIHFAERS A
RE EMEEREREES &t
BEEHASBEKX - H—REE
BERBIEEASHBESL A
EMEN R EERE AT R ES
#lo

RIBZESTFREiES BRELE
HIEY S st R E R EEE B
AEE MR B S R E B R
BRHTERNEHABRER 18
EREGMBRRMETIRE  UR
BAGRGUBBRRWEPRENSE
REHERE R}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. BEXE

INFORMATION (Continued)

2.3 Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet 2.3
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and IAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture!
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback?

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current?

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance

and IFRS 7 Arrangements?
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IFRSs, which are not yet effective,
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%ﬁj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXREHBERER @
INFORMATION (Continued)
2.4 Basis of consolidation 24 ZEEE
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial CEURRROEAERRENE
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at the NERRE PPN HERRT
reporting date.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, ERERHSELENRERN

to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

° the contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote
holders of the investee

SRIHRAER BRI ZEEN LUK EE
BREHKERNRNENZEZEFE
by RIERIS I HIE -

—RBERT AE—EHEE NZHEK
R AR - AU EE ML
HEEREFLNREHRAZH
RENACRENNERN B AEE
RFEHESHEEHREHRE
HEEERE—AREERIBR
B

e HRBEHFRHMEBEFEAA
a2 HE

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements . HM &S HErmEE R
. the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights . AEBNKEEKRBERE
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI") are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially
recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Factory building
THEF

Shop lot

[k
Renovation of building
ESE

Plant and machinery
o 55 Re ts ik
Computer and software
B REY

Motor vehicles

AE

Furniture and fittings
RERKEE

Office equipment

MARE

Data centre in progress are not depreciated as the asset is
not yet available for its use.

2. EXE

25

STBUERER @

ME BB R

FREME BERKRFEEREND &
RAAR-EBEERYE Ffﬁ%&
REBEE AR Z RN mp] 5E
ﬁ)\ﬁ%@fﬁﬁilﬁﬁzﬂzzmb
RMHEBR > HRZEB N REE
BREE-

B’ ME BB RREBERER
REHTERRFREBEFTE-

ME-BERKERBETXFRHEE
EGEHRIEAEHINE

50 years
504

50 years
504

10 years
105

5to 10 years
5Z104F

3 to 5 years
3ES5EF

5 years

5%

10 years
105

10 years

104

EREBPOLLATHE RADZ
BEEMHRTHER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method
are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either
finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over
the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if the events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit
level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at
the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss.

Other intangible asset

Other intangible asset of the Group comprise of source code
acquired separately. The asset is not depreciated as it is not
yet available for its use.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payment to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change
in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or a cash generating unit (a “CGU)’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. BEAGHEEER®@
INFORMATION (Continued)
2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 29 FERMEERE @)
(Continued)

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted
Cash Flows (“DCF”) model. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. The cash flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance
of the CGU being tested. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. The recoverable amount is sensitive
to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.9

210

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGUs recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair
value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%ﬁj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OClI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition

and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in four categories:

Q)

@

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through
OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The
Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

and

The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows

The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BMBHwRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

n-F

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments -

initial recognition

and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes
trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss includes investments in money market fund.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

2.

116

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition

and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%ﬁj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition

and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

For trade and other receivables, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%l‘fj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 365 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Loan and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition

and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(b)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued))
Loan and borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or
loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%ﬁj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments -

initial recognition

and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.11 Foreign currency

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s financial statements are presented in
Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM”). The Company’s functional
currency is Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”), i.e., the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it
operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the
respective functional currencies of the entities within
the Group and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured at historical
cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair
value are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.11 Foreign currency (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency transactions (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except
for exchange differences arising on monetary items
that form part of the Group’s operations, which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve
in equity.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for the differences
arising on the translation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from
such non-monetary items are also recognised directly
in equity.

(c) Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated into RM at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their
statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The exchange differences arising on translation for
consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that
particular foreign operation is reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is determined on a weighted
average basis and comprises materials, direct labour and an
appropriate portion of production overheads. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%l‘fj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EATHHEEER ®
INFORMATION (Continued)
2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 213 IREKRIIRNEEEY

214

2.15

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at
each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

214

2.15
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(a)

(b)

(c)

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security
contributions are recognised as an expenses in the
reporting period in which the associated services
are rendered by employees of the Group. Short
term accumulating compensated absences such as
paid annual leave are recognised when services are
rendered by employees that increase their entitlement
to future compensated absences. Short term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as sick
and medical leave are recognised when the absences
occur.

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, companies in Malaysia contribute
to the state pension scheme, the Employees Provident
Fund (“EPF”). Such contributions are recognised as
an expense in the profit or loss as incurred. Once the
contributions have been paid, the Group has no further
payment obligations.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXGHBRER®
INFORMATION (Continued)
2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers 217 RPEZRIITSHMWNE

The Group is involved in the business of providing outsourced
data and document management services. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognised when control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements except for the
distribution and sales of medical equipment.

(a) Outsourced services
(i)  Document management

The Group enters into contracts with customers
for the provision of outsourced document
management services and works are performed
upon receipt of job orders from the customers,
typically on a monthly basis. Outsourced
document management services include coding
of the format/presentation of the document;
converting raw data into the desired format/
presentation; and delivering the document to the
end-customers in an agreed mode.

Such contracts comprise a single distinct
performance obligation because the Group’s
promise to transfer the services to the customer
is not separately identifiable as each service
within the series is in fact a phase within the
outsourced document management services
that are highly interdependent and highly
interrelated to each other in producing an
integrated/combined output to the customer,
i.e., to deliver the document in the desired
format to its customers with a copy kept as
record. Besides, the Group has not and will not
provide part of the services as the customer is
not likely to engage multiple parties to perform
different phases of the outsourced document
management services as each phase is highly
interdependent and highly interrelated with each
other.
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(@) Outsourced services (Continued)

()

(i)

(ifi)

Document management (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of outsourced document management
services at a point in time because the customer
will only receive and consume the benefits until
the document is delivered to its customers.

Insurance marketing

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of outsourced insurance marketing
services at a point in time when the report
or data is delivered to and accepted by its
customers.

Insurance risk analysis

The Group enters into contracts with customers
for the provision of insurance risk analysis
services. The insurance risk analysis services
are performed after receipt of job orders from
the customers. The insurance risk analysis
services include producing a report of insurance
related ratios to insurance companies. The
Group recognises revenue from the provision of
outsourced insurance risk analysis services at a
point in time when the report is delivered to and
accepted by its customers.

The Group provides datas for customer’s
telemarketing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Enterprise software solutions

(i)

(i)

Customised software

The Group provides customised software which
is significantly modified to suit the requirements
of a customer. The modification, testing and
installation of the software are carried out in the
customer’s computer system.

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of customised software over time by
the reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Electronic document warehouse services

The Group enters into contracts with customers
for the provision of electronic document
warehouse services which include:

- Storing customers’ document in electronic
document warehouse

- Enabling unlimited direct document
retrieval by customers

EXREFTHREN @

217 REER RIS

TERGBRAE

) E#IEHF
ERBEHER R
ERRFEIFRERE
HLUmEBERBER-

(i)

C-Link Squared Limited

RENER AR
HEE S B RSS
T

TEBEZ2ERT TR
#EE o 4% B ) B SRR (1
TE B A EE R W
75 R & R RS
REAXEBRREMHZF

Az
>< o

I

LEFXE IR
rEBMBEHEF XM
FRRFEERIILE
o HpaE

~ BERHXHAR
BFXNE

- BEPRAUSER
BB RX M

2023 FER

127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'\

2.

128

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Enterprise software solutions (Continued)

(i)

Electronic document warehouse services
(Continued)

Such contracts comprise of a single
performance obligation because the Group’s
promise to store and enable direct document
retrieval to the customer is not separately
identifiable as they are highly interdependent and
highly interrelated to each other, i.e., the Group
will not be able to provide the direct document
retrieval service without having to provide the
document storage services.

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of electronic document warehouse
services over time because the customers
receive and consume the benefits as and when
the Group provides the access to the electronic
document warehouse over time.

Distribution and sales of medical equipment

The Group enters into a new contract for each
transaction with customers for the distribution and
sales of medical equipments as an agent. Medical
equipment sold includes cardioverter-defibrillators
and anesthesia laryngoscope. The Group recognises
revenue from distribution and sales of medical
equipment at point in time when the control of the
medical equipments is transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

®

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for services transferred to the customer.
If the Group performs by transferring services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services
to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

2.18 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to

the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in

equity is recognised in equity and not in the profit or loss.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.18 Taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

S where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%l‘fj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EATHHEEER ®
INFORMATION (Continued)
2.18 Taxes (Continued) 2.18 #RI1E (@)

Deferred tax (Continued)

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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2.

132

BMBHwRRMIEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

218

219

2.20

Taxes (Continued)
Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of sales tax, except:

° when the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable; and

° receivables and payables that are stated with the
amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

(8 A person or a close member or that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(1) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  Has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

221 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
condition applies:

Q)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
any entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(b)
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3.

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting

date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates

could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

3.1 Ciritical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

3.2

There were no critical judgements made by management in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies that
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements during the current financial year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are set out below:

(a)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period.
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal

Intangible assets are tested for

and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs to sell is based on past binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?i&%ﬁj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the financial sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of
customer's actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in Note 29(a).

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

4. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 4.
CUSTOMERS

4.1 Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue

k

RERE RIS

41 WEDEER
TXHIAEBKREHRETLTLAS

from contracts with customers: AW E D
2023 2022
20234 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
TER FoEH ToaH
Type of services PRFsEEERY
Outsourced services SMFIARTS
- Document management —XHEE 73,682 77,574
— Insurance marketing —{REE 12,889 14,548
— Insurance risk analysis —RBE R B o AT 473 7,314
Enterprise software solutions: ERGBRALE
— Customised software — & HlE 4,479 4,755
— Electronic document warehouse —EF X ERHRTS
services 1,078 1,053
Others: Hith :
— Distribution and sales of medical —DHEKRHEBRERE
equipment 1,162 436
Total revenue from contracts with REHEFRITIUSHREINE
customers 93,763 105,680
Timing of revenue recognition Ut 5 220 Y R
At a point in time YR EFEEh 88,206 99,872
Over time R 5,557 5,808
Total revenue from contracts with KERERITI AN
customers 93,763 105,680
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n-F j?*&%l‘fj*i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

4. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 4. KRBHEEFRIIIIAHNNE @
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
4.2 Contract balances 42 BHEERR
2023 2022
20234 20224
RM’000 RM’000
SER SEB
Trade receivable (Note 18) B WA (15E18) 19,675 19,774
Contract liabilities (Note 21) aNas (WsE21) 1,535 1,574

4.3

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Outsourced document management services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and
payment is generally due upon completion of the service.

Outsourced insurance risk analysis services and
insurance marketing services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when the report or data is delivered to and accepted by its
customers and payment is generally due upon completion of
the service.

Customised software

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and
payment is generally due upon achieving pre-agreed billing
milestones.

Electronic document warehouse services
The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and

payment is generally due in advance at the beginning of the
service period.

Distribution and sales of medical equipment

The performance obligation upon acceptance of goods by
the customer and payment is generally due in advance before
delivery.

43 BHEME

ERAERBENSENER SR
T

S EIRARTS
BAOEEEFKEMETE -—RER
PR %5 7e Al B 1 7K o

M o B [ B 53 A AR S B R B 8
AR %

BHUEERREXBEINTFER
RERPEARRESERETE—
AR B AR 75 52 Al B A4 70 o

TE HIER 1
BHUEEREREEITE-—RINER
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

4. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 4. KRBHEETRIIIUAHNNNE @
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
4.3 Performance obligations (Continued) 43 BHEFE @)
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance R2023F K20225F 12831 H DB F
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 FRENEE KRBT RE
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: T HRZEROT

As at 31 December

t12H31H
2023 2022
20235 20224F
RM’000 RM’000
TEH LEH
Expected to be recognised: FTERAR WA TR REER
Within one year —FR 2,238 2,586
More than one year —&ED 115 2,920
2,353 5,506
The Group applies the practical expedient on the exemption AEENBRIRERBRARS —
to disclose the information on the remaining performance FHIUANRFERANTSENERE
obligations that have original expected durations of one year BERERE X
or less.
The remaining performance obligations expected to be R2023%F12H31HBHAR —F U L
recognised in more than one year as at 31 December 2023 RN GRRNETEBEMER
relate to the enterprise software solutions to be satisfied ;A E (2022E CREMEARTZU L)
within or more than two years (2022: within or more than two BTN ERGBRSZER -
years).
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the provision of outsourced services.
Since this is the only operating segment of the Group, no further

operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived mainly
from its operations in Malaysia, Singapore and the PRC, and the
non-current assets of the Group were mainly located in Malaysia as

at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(@) Geographical information

5.

DEER
REBMS AEEEE—ETREEE
HE - EMRMESMIIRTS - B R A E
MRS E D S REIIHE— S
B

AEBREIBELEHNREFTERBH

AERPE R PENES MR
2023 %2022FE 128310 » AEEMIE
RENEEMN BRI

(a) HuUSER

2023 2022
2023% 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
& FToEH FL5E
Geographical markets s 5 18

Malaysia Bk 76,727 80,621
Singapore s 2,512 2,761
PRC F 14,524 22,298

Total revenue from contracts with REHEEFFTIL AR
customers 93,763 105,680

(b) Non-current assets (b) FERIMEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RM’000 RM’000
F<oEE T
Malaysia BRI 34,688 32,212
PRC H 55 77
Total 4Bst 34,743 32,289

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, prepayments, intangible

assets and deferred tax assets.

FILMENFRBEESTEYE
BERRE ERABEE RNUMR
B BILEEREERAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEEE (@
(c) Information about major customers (c) BRAXFEXFMER
Revenue from top 5 customer groups of the Group’s revenue REERSARBEFEBRLAER
for each reporting period is set out below: AR R ESIUT

Representing

% of total Sales
revenue amount
L4 IR RY
BALE tHEERE
Group RM’000
E SEH
For the financial year ended HE2023F 128318 LB EE
31 December 2023
Bank Group A IRITERA 23.09% 21,653
Bank Group B RITEEB 16.15% 15,147
Bank Group C RITEEC 10.56% 9,900
Insurance Group D (Note) T?ﬁ E£=D (5% 6.44% 6,034
Bank Group E (Note) IRITEEE (&) 4.15% 3,894
Total st 60.39% 56,628
For the financial year ended HZE2022F12831H LM BEE
31 December 2022
Bank Group A RITEBEA 24.87% 26,279
Bank Group B RITEEB 13.69% 14,471
Bank Group C RITEEC 9.86% 10,423
Insurance Group F REZEEF 7.46% 7,889
Insurance Group G RIEEEG 6.92% 7,314
Total st 62.80% 66,376
Note: The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 did not Mzt : B ZE2022F12831HIEEE 2K
contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for that miEAEBRZFEELR DB
year. #B10% ©
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HkA

2023 2022
20235 20224F
Group RM’000 RM’000
wER ToEH TLaH
Interest income F B A 1,068 812
Value added tax incentive BEREER - 375
Government grants BN 8 - 27
Others Hih 156 8
1,224 1,000
Government grants represent grants received for the stabilisation of BT FBEmMIZE ERAT KR EBNE
employment in Malaysia and Hong Kong. There were no unfulfiled WER B9 #E B 7220235128310 Il EE
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants as at 31 Rt B i R AZE R RS AE TR

December 2023 (2022: Nil). (20224 : 4E) o

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. WERE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
KER FoEH ToEH
Interest expenses on: THEENF B -

— term loan —EHE® 374 407
— overdraft -5 1 1
- lease liabilities (Note 23) —HEaE (FE23) 13 8
Amortisation of transaction costs (Note 22) R 5 (MisE22) 71 20
459 446
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

8.

142

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The following items have been included in arriving at (loss)/profit

8. Pa#iAl (E548) &EH

TEEZEE ARKRA (B8 EF) .

before tax:
2023 2022
20235 20224F
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH FoEH ToaH
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMEN =

— statutory —EE 582 610

- others —HA 102 136
Cost of services recognised as expenses WERBARZ ZRER A 59,471 65,229
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BaREZEEMA 11,385 17,002
Staff costs* (Note 10) BT A" (fEE10) 16,884 13,490
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment*  #12  kE KR FEITE" (MsE14)

(Note 14) 1,147 1,527
Depreciation of right-of-use assets™ (Note 15)  {E BB EHTE™ (H:E15) 215 270
Amortisation of intangible assets** (Note 16) EAE ESE (5E16) 771 986
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade B R EWRIBTEAREEEE

receivables (Note 18) B (fyEE18) 245 9
Bad debts written off; IRARES

— trade receivables —EB S REWRIE 590 351
Allowance/(reversal) for unutilised leave R R, (B[] 35 (42)
Net unrealised foreign currency exchange losses k235 915 B 2 548 5 48 253 184
Research cost RZTA AR 917 2,321
Legal and other professional fees FERRHEHMEEER 3,833 7,676
# Staff costs of approximately RM5,855,000 (2022: approximately E #5,855,0009 F 1 (2022F : &

RM5,875,000) and RM11,029,000 (2022: approximately
RM7,615,000) has been included in cost of sales and administrative

expenses respectively.

* Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately *
RM540,000 (2022: approximately RM922,000) and RM607,000
(2022: approximately RM605,000) has been included in cost of sales

and administrative expenses respectively.
x

comprehensive income.

comprehensive income.
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Included in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of

Included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

9. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s net loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial
year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the
computations for basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company:

9.

BREE
SREXHBERDELAAREFTE AR
EARERGEFERUYBEERET
TESMY BB R INE T B o

TERRBAATDREFEABLEERE
AREEBEFEMAZRARRKRNGH
#7® e

2023 2022
20235 2022%F
RM’000 RM’000
FoEH FoER
Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of st E&ERE AL # EEERA AT
the Company for the purposes of basic and B AEBEFEREE
diluted loss per share (4,249) (807)

Number of shares

4=
2023 2022
20234 2022
‘000 ‘000
Tie Fh&
(restated)
(RE7))

Weighted average number of shares for the FTEESREARREEEERNEF

purposes of basic and diluted loss per share BB EEB 2,400,000 2,400,000

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares adopted for the
current years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022
have been calculated to take into account the share subdivision
of the Company from 1 issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each subdivided into the 3 ordinary shares of HK$0.003
each on 13 June 2023 (Note 25). Loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 has been restated accordingly.

The Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

HE2023F12A31HEAFEERES
2022FE 12831 B IEFEEFRRBIEER
MEFEHHEEFERET RE20235F68
1BHEMN ARG RMDITMBEEREE
Z0.01BTHIREZE TR ARETRESR
B A A3 S IR EEA0.0038 T &8
A% (Fi5E25) o B E2022F 12831 H L FEE
HEREBBEEEEMES -

B E2023F K2022F12831HIEEE » K
ERUTEESETETHEZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

10. STAFF COSTS 10. T4

2023 2022

20235 20224

Group RM’000 RM’000
TEE F<EHE FLoEH
Salaries and performance related bonuses e MBI RIFEREITEAL 15,724 12,115
Pension scheme contributions BIASEHEIHR 1,137 1,340
Other employee benefits HigSEF] 23 35
16,884 13,490

Included in staff costs are Executive Directors’ remuneration as
disclosed in Note 11.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three directors (2022: two directors). The details of directors’
remuneration are disclosed in Note 11. Details of the remaining
two (2022: three) highest paid employees whom are non-directors
during the year are as follows:

ETHABENZIIRENNTESH
i

po=;)

o

EREILREFNEECRE =-RES
(2022 . MBZER) - EFHMEBH
BRI - FRERME (2022F : =
L) MIIFEENERSFHMNEENBUWT !

2023 2022

2023% 20224

Group RM’000 RM’000
rE FT<EH FLEH
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e MR EYHIE 798 848
Performance related bonuses BFRIRAERIRVTEAL 331 217
Pension scheme contributions BRIREE B 20 52
1,149 1,117

C-Link Squared Limited

144 Annual Report 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

10. STAFF COSTS (Continued) 10. ETHA @

The number of two (2022: three) highest paid employees of the FRFHWEBEN U THEEN R EE R
Group (excluding executive directors) whose total remuneration (20224 | =%) e wblEES (FEEHR
during the year fell within the following bands are analysed below: TES) BESWUWT -

Group 2023 2022
REE 20234 20224
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001t E 1,500,000 AT 1 1
During the year, no (2022: Nil) remuneration was paid by the Group AEE AEEMEREENATESER
to, or receivable by, the directors or past directors or any of the five THEEREHNEESHN HFE
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining EETAEWEE (20224F : &) - EAM
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. AXREBREMARE BB E

AEEHEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EFHM
The details of remuneration received/receivable by the Directors of RABDEERHHFEECWR B H
the Company for the financial year are as follows: BB -
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions Bonus remuneration
e EER il
ik BMRIE HEGE TE4 iz

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FLER FLER FLER FLER FLER

31 December 2023 20235125310
Executive Directors: BITEE .
M. F Ling (Note () F Lings54E (K12£() 3 420 120 2,191 2,770
Mr. W Ling (Note (i) W Lingée £ (B3ER) 39 420 120 2,191 2,770
Mr. Ma Shengcong BEREE 70 - - - 70
Ms. Zhang Ying (Note (i) RE L () 47 - - - 47
195 840 240 4,382 5,657
Non-executive Director: FRTES:
Mr. S Ling Slingt% 116 320 38 40 514
Dr. Wu Xianyi REREL 70 - - - 70
186 320 38 40 584
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIUFFRTES
M. Yang Junhui REERE 70 - - - 70
Mr. Lee Yan Kit (Note (v)) FTRELE () 28 - - - 28
Mr. Qian Jianguang #ERE 70 - - - 70
Dr. Zeng Jianhua BERT 70 - - - 70
238 - - - 238
619 1,160 218 4,422 6,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) EEH (&)
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions Bonus  remuneration
e 2R Bihe
ik Ll ST el HiAegE
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
RER RER RER RER RER
31 December 2022 2022F12A31H
Executive Directors: RTES .
Mr. F Ling (Note () F Lings2 4 (B3H()) 112 1,039 169 582 1,902
Mr. W Ling (Note (i) W LingZc 4 (92%(i) 112 1,039 169 582 1,902
Mr. Ma Shengcong EfRxst 67 = = = 67
291 2,078 338 1,164 3,871
Non-executive Director: FRTES !
M. S Ling S Ling#etE 112 - - - 112
Dr. Wu Xianyi BERELT 67 - - - 67
179 - - - 179
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFRTES:
Mr. Yang Junhui BEELE 53 - - - 53
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (Note (iv) ERERE (HEW) 15 - - - 15
Mr. Lee Yan Kit (Note (v) FTERARE (V) 12 = = = 12
Mr. Qian Jianguang eIy 25 - - - 25
Dr. Zeng Jianhua BRERL 67 - - = 67
272 - - - 272
742 2,078 338 1,164 4,322
Notes: B
0] Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang (“Mr. F Ling”) ceased as executive director 0] Llng Sheng HwangZt 4 (TF Lingst41)
of the Company with effect from 1 May 2023. BETAABDBITES > 8202355
ﬁ 1HEE -
(ii) Mr. Ling Sheng Chung (“Mr. W Ling”) ceased as executive director (ii) Ling Sheng Chung#t 4 (TW LingZe 4 1)
of the Company with effect from 1 May 2023. BEAXAABNITES  B20235F5
Bi1HE4 -
(i) Ms. Zhang Ying was appointed as executive director of the (i) RELTEREARRTNTES
Company with effect from 1 May 2023. H2023F581HEEM -
(iv) Mr. Tso Sze Wai resigned as independent non-executive director (iv) ERHESEREIA A EILIERITE
of the Company with effect from 21 March 2022. E> B202293F21 HEA M
) Mr. Lee Yan Kit ceased as independent non-executive director of ) ERBEETNBETASATEILIEY

the Company with effect from 27 March 2023.

1TEE > B2023F3827HEE
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 1. EEHH &)
All the above benefits in the Directors’ remuneration consist of cash EEFHFNPHFABE LA G EERERE
benefits only. F) o
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or REE2023F 12831 HIEH B EE >
agreed to waive any remuneration during the financial year ended BEENELARNEREETAFNNZH
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). (20224 @ ) ©
The remuneration for the Executive Directors shown above were for TRATEENFNABSIEAERAT
their services as directors of the Company and for their services in EERERBURBREREEELART K
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and AEEEFIREIRFBFBN o LA IERNAT
the Group. The remuneration for the Non-Executive Director and EERBUIFHNTEETNHFNERLRSE
our Independent Non-Executive Directors shown above were for AR AT ESIRHERFIEBN
their services as directors of the Company only.
No remuneration was paid or receivable in respect of a person REE2023F 12831 HIEMBEE » W HE
accepting office as a director during the financial year ended 31 ERERSESHENALZEMNIERK
December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil). Bl (2022F12H31H @ &) o
No remuneration was recognised or paid by the Group to the REE2023F 1283 1HIEHBEE » &
directors or past directors as compensation for loss of office EEUTRMOESHAAESRARZA
as a director or loss of any other office in connection with the EAEFHM FAREEETRBHREHLR
management of the affairs of the Group during the financial year EEEREEARNEMNEMBEENEE
ended 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil). (2022FE12H31H : #) o
No consideration was provided to or receivable by any third party REE2023F 128318 LI BERE > 8
for making available the services of a person as a director of a ME—BATRENADESRE (T2
company, or in any other capacity while a director during the THRTESHBUEMBHRY) mEN
financial year ended 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil). N EAE=HAE (2022612831
B: & o
There was no arrangement in relation to loans, quasi-loans and REE2023F 1283 1HIEHBEE » &
other dealings between the Group and the directors (including any EENEE (BRETATZEESENR
entities controlled by or connected with such directors) during the ﬁiui}? EEFMENER 2EfERE
financial year ended 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil). T EERREMTZERNZHEE (2022
Em% 318 I ) o
The Company has not entered into any authorised loans which PEE2023F 12831 B LM BEE » & A
include outstanding loans made under the authority of sections Bl ] U EAEREER SEREA
280 and 281 of the Companies Ordinance during the financial year Bl & B 55280 K% 2811 I 9% # {E H B9 R 18
ended 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Ni). BEI (20228128310 | ) o
148 C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

12. DIVIDEND

12.

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: No final dividend).

i'. I%\

EEEMEZRNVEE2023F12831H
IEFEEREARE (2022F @ EARIR
B)e

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FRISIRA
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
wEE ToEH FLEH
Current income tax: BERPRISHR

— Malaysia —ERAs 2,505 2,765
—the PRC —F 263 596

Over provision in prior years B BEEBREEG
— Malaysia —EREE (137) (346)
- the PRC —f (554) (259)
2,077 2,756
Deferred tax (Note 24): IEERIE (F5E24) - (124) (339)
Income tax expense Fri8iBX 1,953 2,417

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax
rate of 24% (2022: 24%) and the PRC of 25% (2022: 25%) of the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the

Company is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands.

NFTEMR I ER L ERR B2
ERFET AT E24% (20224 1 24%) &
REEEE25% (20224 © 25%) 51 & ©

RERSEENRURER xR EHA
RS SHMERFISIR

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit
before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at
the effective income tax rate of the Group is as follows:

150

13. FRSMRAX @)
BRARREEMSRRESEHORRA
(538 /HFBFRS MM R A EE
BRFSRREH HOMSRMEZNY

BRanF -
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
EE <TEH SEHE
(Loss)/profit before tax BRIGAT (8518) m A (1,465) 2,697
Tax at a rate of: MEA
— Malaysia at 24% (2022: 24%) — B R FGT524% (20224F : 24%) 1,662 2,008
- Hong Kong at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) —&H516.5% (20224 : 16.5%) (1,576) (1,770)
— People’s Republic of China at —mEE N RHEME25%
25% (2022: 25%) (20224 @ 25%) 290 644
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for MBS AN 2
tax purposes MEE 2,358 2,192
Tax effect of income not taxable for MIRIBEME BAFRINEGEZ
tax purposes MBEEE - @)
Tax deduction 0| (90) (50)
Over provision of income tax in prior years BEFERRSRBRERE (691) (605)
Income tax expense for the year FAMERES 1,953 2,417

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate
reconciliations for each national jurisdiction and eliminating intra-

group transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% -BEB&E

Computer
Data centre Factory Renovation Plant and and Motor Furniture Office
in progress building Shoplot  of building  machinery software vehicles and fittings  equipment Total
ARBERL  IHEF i BEEN  BEREAE ERRRH RE RERRE MARE a5
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
HEE LEHR LEHR LEHR LER LEHR LEHR LER LEHR LEHR LER
31 December 2023 20235128310
Cost 52
At 1 January 2023 12023F1 818 14,112 1,487 3,505 4,549 4,726 5,373 740 521 1,264 36,277
Additions HE 1,187 - - - - 75 255 - 167 1,684
Written-off s - - - - - - (23) - - (23)
At 31 December 2023 20235125318 15,299 1,487 3,505 4,549 4,726 5,448 972 521 1,431 37,938
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
At 1 January 2023 #2023 1A 1H - 497 660 3,469 4,554 4,722 3 450 1,021 16,086
Charge for the year (Note 8)  E AR (Hi58) - 30 70 361 172 332 48 50 84 1,147
Written-off b - - - - - - (23) - - (23
At 31 December 2023 R20236F 1283180 - 527 730 3,830 4,726 5,054 738 500 1,105 17,210
Net carrying amount IREFE 15,209 960 2,775 719 - 394 234 21 326 20,728
Computer
Data centre Factory Renovation Plant and and Motor Furniture Office
in progress building Shop lot of building machinery software vehicles and fittings equipment Total
HRERL  IREF EEAE BFHN  BERER BERRE RE  REREE NS st
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
*%0 FoEl  FoEH SER FOEN  TOEH  TOEN  TOEE  FomH  TOER L&
31 December 2022 20225128310
Cost 52
At 1 January 2022 2022118 - 1,487 3,505 4,549 4,726 5,180 M 503 1,188 21,849
Additions wE 14,112 - - - - 193 29 18 76 14,428
At 31 December 2022 120226128318 14,112 1,487 3,505 4,549 4,726 5373 740 521 1,264 36,277
Accumulated depreciation B iHiTE
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1H - 467 590 3,060 4,316 4,039 4l 424 952 14,559
Charge for the year (Note 8) £ AFI% (f38) - 30 70 409 238 683 2 26 69 1,527
At 31 December 2022 120226128318 = 497 660 3,469 4,554 4,722 713 450 1,021 16,086
Net carrying amount IREFE 14,112 990 2,845 1,080 172 651 27 71 243 20,191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

152

(Continued)

During the prior year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
into a provisional agreement with an independent third party to
acquire a building in Malaysia at the consideration of approximately
RM12 million (equivalent to approximately HK$22 million), of which
RM10 million (equivalent to approximately HK$20 million) were
paid out of the net proceeds of the Company’s share offer and
placing (the “Share Offer”). The Group began the conversion of
the building into the Data Centre in June 2022. As at 31 December
2023, the conversion work was still in progress and it is expected
that the Data Centre will be ready for use by the year ended 31
December 2025. The conversion work was delayed mainly due to
the unexpected longer time required for the application for approval
for the building, renovation and construction plans from the local
authorities regarding the conversion of building usage.

The Group estimates that the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment does not exceed the recoverable amount and no
impairment has been recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, factory building with carrying amounts
of approximately RM960,000 (2022: RM990,000) and shop lot
with carrying amounts of approximately RM2,775,000 (2022:
RM2,845,000) are pledged as security for banking facilities of the
Group as disclosed in Note 22.
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ZE2025F12831H IEEERIRAMEH 28
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YRARAM S EERBLERR WERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Group has lease contracts for leasehold land, office premise,
motor vehicle and data centre used in its operations, which
generally have lease terms between 85 and 97 years, between 5

15. EFHEEEE
AEE B ESERARE - BAEY
¥ RERFEDLTTAESY A
— R DR BN FLEEITE N FEE10E

and 10 years and 2 years respectively. Fe2% o
Leasehold Office Motor Leased
land premise vehicle data centre Total

HELTH MAEYE RE EEHERD st
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
by 0] TLER TeER ToER TLER TeER
31 December 2023 2023F12831H
Cost &
As at 1 January 2023 1120231 81H 3,621 611 - 465 4,697
Additions A S 293 430 151 874
Currency translation differences ERESR - 19 - - 19
As at 31 December 2023 120235128310 3,621 923 430 616 5,590
Accumulated depreciation REHE
At 1 January 2023 1720231810 602 480 - 465 1547
Charge for the year (Note 8) FRER (i) 41 89 57 28 215
Currency translation differences BERER - 9 - - 9
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12531H 643 578 57 493 1,771
Net carrying amount IREEE 2,978 345 373 123 3,819
31 December 2022 2022%12H31H
Cost oy
As at 1 January 2022 20221 B1H 3,621 632 - 465 4,718
Currency translation differences ERER - 1) - - (21)
As at 31 December 2022 120226128310 3,621 611 - 465 4,697
Accumulated depreciation RHE
At 1 January 2022 59202251)%1\ H 562 399 - 325 1,286
Charge for the year (Note 8) FRFEZ (ES) 40 90 = 140 270
Currency translation differences ERER S 9 . = [
As at 31 December 2022 20225128310 602 480 - 465 1,647
Net carrying amount IREEE 3,019 131 - - 3,150

R2023F128B31H  REEES
2,978,000% F4F (20224 : 3,019,000%
=5 NHAE T M B EIRIEA M sE22FT ¥
BENAEBIRTRENIKF

As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land with carrying amounts of
approximately RM2,978,000 (2022: RM3,019,000) is pledged as
security for banking facilities of the Group as disclosed in Note 22.

C-Link Squared Limited
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

16.

154

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. |AZEE
Software development expenditure L E e e
Streamline Streamline Streamline
output Streamline document document
management  electronic data  management  management
system warehouse  system phase | system phase I
Source code (“OMS”) (‘EDW”) (“DMS phase I") (“DMS phase II") Total
Streamline Streamline
document document
Streamline Streamline  management  management
output electronic system system
management data FIRE FIFLE
system warehouse ('oms ("'DMs
R (froms)) (TEDW 1) F1RE) HoRE) gt
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
£/ FEH FEH FEH FEH FEH FER
31 December 2023 2023%12A318
Cost R
At 1 January 2023 120231518 2,305 848 1,354 1,185 3,072 8,764
Additions HE 2,857 - - - - 2,857
At 31 December 2023 20235128318 5,162 848 1,354 1185 3072 11,621
Accumulated amortisation BitE
At 1 January 2023 120231518 - 848 1,354 1,028 1,228 4,458
Charge for the year (Note 8) FABEZ (fEs) - - - 157 614 m
At 31 December 2023 12023125310 = 848 1,354 1,185 1,842 5229
Net carrying amount IREFE 5,162 - - - 1,230 6,392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. |AZEE
Software development expenditure (Continued) MHRAERSE (@)
Streamline Streamline Streamline
output Streamline document document
management  electronic data management management
system warehouse  system phase | system phase Il
Source code (‘OMS”) (‘EDW”)  (“DMS phase I")  (“DMS phase II") Total
Streamline Streamline
document document
Streamline Streamline management management
output electronic system system
management data Blag BIRE
system warehouse (TDMs (TDMs
FRE (Toms ) (TEDW)) EAlEd) EHEEA) it
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
55E ER TER TEH TEH TEH SEH
31 December 2022 2022%128310
Cost o
At 1 January 2022 R202F1E1H - 848 1,354 1,185 3,072 6,459
Addftions hE 2,306 - - - - 2,305
At 31 December 2022 002108318 2305 848 1354 1,185 3072 8,764
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 January 2022 R202F1E1H - 848 1,219 791 614 3472
Charge for the year (Note 8) ERmE () - - 1% 27 614 96
At 31 December 2022 002108318 - 848 1354 1028 1228 4,458
Net carrying amount REFE 2,305 - - 157 1844 4306
C-Link S d Limited
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Amortisation

Amortisation of software development expenditure is included
in the “Cost of sales” line item in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Impairment testing

The carrying value of the intangible assets is expected to be
recovered from probable future economic benefits that are
expected to be generated from the commercial exploitation of these
intangible assets. The remaining amortisation period at the financial
year end is less than 5 years.

The recoverable amounts of the intangible assets have been
determined based on value in use calculations using projected cash
flows from financial budgets approved by management covering
the useful lives of the each of intangible assets, including intangible
asset which is not yet available for use. The discount rates and the
forecast gross profit margin applied to the cash flow projections are
as follows:

16.

BEE @

AR EEAAGRS2ERERN
MHEMRAIBE A

RAE A
EBREENEERERTREEBNZSE
ENEENBERERELENRELE
F 2 F U [E] o A B IECEE B Ok B9 R Ak 340 6 A
DIRBEE o

@ 4 7 0 7T W B & B B IR 8 48 A 1
HEEE STERSERELERES
AR (QENRTRERETLEE 7
FEREBNHMBERENEARSRE - E
ARReRERANERERBEAER
2T

Key assumptions: 2023 2022
RS - 20234 20224
Forecast gross profit margin FERIEFIE 86.8% 88.7%
Pre tax discount rate GIEIESETES 29.4% 26.4%

Forecast gross profit margin — budgeted gross margin represents
the past performance of the Group and expected market
development.

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. BB E @
Impairment testing (Continued) RERE 6@
Discount rate — Discount rate represents the current market Hﬁfﬁ’?ﬁ\ EIREERREELEEUNETE
assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, regarding the RS MBI G R EENREE
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets TEEZ HARMAREREMGTNEBEE
which have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The BER R bR - IR E S E L ERAEE K&
discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances HEEBEDENARBR  wHEMEFEH
of the Group and its operating segments and derived from its BARMA (TNETHERKA]) FE 0
weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC”). The WACC takes 1B A AL AN B B 5T R B A A Re A
into account both cost of debt and cost of equity. The cost of MR RN A REAEBRKEENTE
equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the BEELRR - BN AERAEREER
Group’s investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing BENFEER D ERMLEBE
borrowings the Group is obliged to service. Segment-specific risk FENEMRHEE A - BEMRERER
is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta factors WA R mEBEEFETI G
are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data.
Business development — there will be no major changes in the (EBERER-ERATHNEABUA EZER
existing political, legal and economic conditions in Malaysia. KERRREERESH -
Sensitivity to change in assumption HERREBCHNBMRE
Management believes that no reasonable possible change in any of BEERA b EZERINGER
the above key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount S EHASERSRESESLENUNT
of each of the CGUs to be materially lower than their respective Wl iEABERESBNEEE
amount.
17. INVENTORIES 17. &8
2023 2022

20235 20224
Group RM'000 RM'000
TEH =i LER
Finished goods LT 617 -
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 RkHMEYFRIE
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM'000 RM'000
R SEH SES
Trade receivables g 5 EWKRIE
Third parties BT= 20,176 20,030
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B FAEREEEREE (501) (256)
Trade receivables, net B 5 e W IE F 38 19,675 19,774
Other receivables HihfEU kI
Non-current JETRE
Prepayments AT ™I 3,068 4,110
Current wRE
Deposits & 1,211 1,024
Sundry receivables H iU RIa 397 438
Prepayments SEENEOE] 3,381 3,418
Amounts due from related parties JFE Wit FE Bt 5 =R I 37 27
5,026 4,907
Total prepayments, deposits and other ANRIE-REK
receivables HAhFE U IE 4828 8,094 9,017
Total trade and other receivables B REMEWTIEEEE 27,769 28,791
Less: Prepayments B TR (6,449) (7,528)
Add: Cash and bank balances (Note 19) 0 RS RIRTTAERR (F9EE19) 42,673 53,926
Total debt instruments carried SR A RNEE T AL
at amortised costs 63,993 75,189
Trade receivables B 5 IR
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on BSRWHRIERTE  HRBEE A30K
30 days (2022: 30 days) terms. They are recognised at their (20224 : 30K) ° E}Q}Tﬁﬁémigéﬁﬁw ’
original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial BRASEAREANRY T BBV AFE.

158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

85 RHEtEUTRIE @
B 5 RERIE (@)
RBEBRZUEORALINGEERB

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18.
Trade receivables (Continued)

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

BB ZEWIERRE DN T !

2023 2022

2023% 20224

Group RM'000 RM'000
TEE ToEH FL5HE
Within 1 month KEISEA 10,340 8,383
1 to 2 months 122 A 2,705 5,810
2 to 3 months 2E3E A 2,635 2,130
Over 3 months 3MEB UL 3,995 3,451
19,675 19,774

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit

TXHINEZEBERRERAEEHIEE

losses of trade receivables: HBRED
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM'000 RM'000
EM ToEH FLEH
At beginning of the year REH 256 247
Allowance during the year (Note 8) FREE (EEs) 245 9
At end of the year REX 501 256

The information about the credit exposures are disclosed in Note

29(a).

BERGEEMONERHRERKHEE29() °
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. B REHMEUFRIE @
Prepayments FE(TRRIE
Included in year-end balance under current assets was an amount FANDEEFRHOEHRHNETEDN
of approximately RM2,583,000 (2022: approximately RM2,134,000) 2,583,000% F4F (20224 : £92,134,000%
relating to the prepayment to suppliers for the purchase of =5 BEHEERZNENREBEUEER
inventories. I=P=1EE
Included in year-end balance under non-current assets was an FAERHEEFARBERNESEDN
amount of approximately RM3,068,000 (2022: approximately 3,068,000% F4F (20224 : 494,110,000%
RM4,110,000) relating to the prepayment for data centre =) BHEEREFOBEBRBFNEMNRIBES
consultancy services. o
Amounts due from related parties FEYX BB 75 7R I8
These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are ZERBEABRBR THEREREXK
repayable on demand. (b=
19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 19. IREZXIRITHEER
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Group RM’000 RM’000
EME TLEH TLEH
Cash on hand and at banks FHEREKRIRBITER 13,465 18,447
Deposits with licensed banks RIFhEIRITIER 29,208 35,479
42,673 53,926
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank ROTERERESARTERAEFE
deposit rates. Deposits with licensed banks are made for varying BEBAEBEFE RIEFEIRITNE
periods between one day and three months (2022: one day and RHEREE NF—RKE=@EA (2022
six months) depending on the immediate cash requirements of the FI—REXNER) AE BEREEDN
Group, and earn interests at the respective deposit rates. During RIRSERME > MRS EZEFERHE
the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the interest rates BEEVF) B o B F2023F 12831 B LB B
of the Group range from 2.60% to 4.25% (2022: from 2.60% to FE > AEBMNFEFENF2.60%E4.25%
3.60%) per annum. (2022F : 2.60%ZE3.60%) °
160 C-Link Squared Limited
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 19.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following at the reporting date:

20.

HE R iRT
BEERERBRMS RREAH B
ERRSSEYOETHEE

THEER (B)

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

Group RM’000 RM’000

TEH FoER ToERE

Cash and bank balances Be K IRITH R 42,673 53,926
Less: Deposit with a licensed bank with maturity 38 : I RESEITAIER

more than 3 months (ZIFAHRBB3ME ) - (2,065)

Cash and cash equivalents B RIBSEEY 42,673 51,861

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with

the current year’s presentation.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

FENETNHR-

20. BHREMELTRIA

ETHERBFEFHENRDE UFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
EM TLEH ToEH
Trade payables B EIE
Third parties F=hH 4,821 3,017
Amounts due to a related party P& — %A RA B 5 TRIE 43 63
4,864 3,080
Other payables HihfE{IRIE
Accruals fEstE A 2,425 3,712
Sundry payables HAth & K18 632 1,006
Sales and Service Tax (“SST’) payable ETIHE ,\Hﬁi‘kﬁ (MHE L ARTFER) 245 168
Amounts due to related parties &S BE Bt 5 =3B 14 14
3,316 4,900
Total trade and other payables B REMEITRIEEZE 8,180 7,980
Add: Loans and borrowings (Note 22) pilI] E?A&%%’X (M5¥22) 6,895 13,383
Add: Lease liabilities (Note 23) - AEaE (YsEes) 677 82
Less: SST payable AN F’g {TEHE EARFE IR (245) (168)
Total financial liabilities carried H 3% 885 a4 A BREY
at amortised cost ERBEEEE 15,507 21,277
C-Link Squared Limited 161

2023 FER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

162

An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20.

B 5 REMETRIE @
REERREREAREEREEAH
BRI DT -

2023 2022
20234 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
wEE FoEH ToaH
Within 1 month 1EA RN 4,581 2,822
1 to 2 months 122 A 283 214
2 to 3 months 2Z3EH - =
Over 3 months AU E - 44
4,864 3,080
Trade payables B ETRIE
These amounts are non-interest bearing and the normal trade terms ZERIBAFE EENESHRA30K
are 30 days (2022: 30 days). (20224 : 30K) °
Sundry payables H{thFE{ITRIE
These amounts are non-interest bearing. Other payables are ZERBEAE c EME HRIBE E %6

normally settled on an average term of 6 months (2022: 6 months).

Amounts due to related parties

These amounts are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on
an average term of 6 months (2022: 6 months).

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. G9&E
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH TER LER
Contract liabilities sHaE
Advance enterprise software solutions AW R GRS R 1,272 812
Advance outsourced services TEUWLSMFIAR 75 263 192
Advance distribution and sales of medical FEW D R E B R
equipment - 570
1,535 1,674
Contract liabilities include enterprise software solutions billed in BNEEEESNaRBENESRANE
advance for which revenue will be recognised over the contractual SR ERGEBRSREZ BN —FENRN
period, advanced billing to customers for the provision of MIREEININRFEB IR EFRILAIEE
outsourced services that is to be satisfied within one year and ERBBRESENENERTER B#ﬁﬁ
advance biling to customers for the distribution and sales of the W ERMIBLAE P FAIINDHERIEE
medical equipment for which revenue will be recognised upon the BEREEE
transfer of the rights of medical equipment to the customer.
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRITEEBINEPREAESNEEMNE
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates NS REULABTHREERITEANSMR
to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods. BRANEEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RM’000 RM’000
TLEH TLHEH
As at 1 January r—A—A 1,574 3,005
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of REAREENTAZ
recognising revenue during the year that BHEERBIA
was included in the contract liabilities at the BERENEERLD
beginning of the year (1,574) (8,005)
Increase of receipts in advance from customers % 5 FEUFUIEE N 1,535 1,655
Exchange realignment PE R AR = (81)
As at 31 December BR+ZB=4+—H 1,535 1,574

C-Link Squared Limited
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

22. LOANS AND BORROWINGS . BERRER
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
R SEH SES
Current REh
Secured: BigE
Term loan 1 THER 2,605 2,505
Bank overdraft RITHEX - 1,600
Flexi loan BEEM - 2,467
Less: Unamortised transaction costs B REIE A 5 A = (20)
2,605 6,552
Non-current JETED
Secured: Bk
Term loan 1 EHRE 4,290 6,882
Less: Unamortised transaction costs BRI 5 A = (61)
4,290 6,831
Total loans and borrowings Bk fE4azE 6,895 13,383
Unamortised transaction costs REHRF A
At beginning of the year REH 71 91
Amortisation for the year (Note 7) FERE (H5E7) (71) (20)
At end of the year REXR - 71
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iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

22. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Continued) 22. ERRIETR (&)

The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings at year end REXREFRKRERNG THHBWT
are as follows:

2023 2022

20234 20224

Group RM’000 RM’000
wER F<EH FLEH
Within 1 year 1ER 2,605 6,552
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years B EBRER2E 2,731 2,599
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years BR2EBRERSE 1,559 4,232
6,895 13,383

Term loan 1 (floating rate), bank overdraft
(floating rate) and FlexiLoan (floating rate)

These borrowings are secured by the followings:

0] first party open charge over the leasehold land (Note 15) and
factory building (Note 14) of the Group;

(i)  first party open charge over shop lot (Note 14) of the Group;
and

(i) corporate guarantee by the Company.

The interest rate per annum at the reporting date for the loans and
borrowings are as follows:

EHEM (FBHAX) RITEX (F
BHER) REFER (FEFXR)
ZEERAT ISR

() HAEEBSLM (H15) RIK
1BF (MsE14) E—FRRFL

(i) HEEBEEHGH (E14) BOBE—
VN E LN

(i) ATATZEEER

ERARERIRS BMVERNROT

2023 2022

20234 20224

Group % %
EM % %
Term loan 1 ERER 4.75 4.50
Bank overdraft R1TEX N/A RiER 6.60
Flexi loan BIEEW N/A RiEH 4.50

C-Link Squared Limited
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. fHE&E
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
R SEH SES
Current B
Lease payment on data centre ES L SlNY =N —ENE 104 =
Lease payment on motor vehicles ABEBEENR 77 =
Lease payment on office premise MAEYERENR 143 82
324 82
Non-current JERE
Lease payment on data centre P OMBEENR 9 =
Lease payment on motor vehicles ARERENR 194 =
Lease payment on office premise WAEYERENLR 150 =
Total lease liabilities HEaBEREE 677 82
Set out below is the movement in lease liabilities: TXHEHINEEEBHNES !
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
wEE T<EH ToaH
At beginning of the year REY) 82 278
Addition wNE 764 -
Accretion of interest (Note 7) BB (M5E7) 13 8
Payment of lease liabilities ZHHEEEaE (182) (204)
At end of the year REXR 677 82
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

23. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 23. HEBE®
The remaining maturities of the lease liabilities at year end are as RERBESENG TEHBEWT :
follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEE FoEHE FTLoTEH
Within 1 year 1R 324 82
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years BI1EEBRERSE 353 -
677 82
The interest rates per annum at the reporting date for the lease EEEERREEHENENEDT .
liabilities are as follows:
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group % %
wER % %
Lease payment on data centre P OEENR 4.90 4.90
Lease payment on motor vehicles ABEHEENR 4.55 =
Lease payment on office premise MAEYEBENR 4.75 4.90
C-Link Squared Limited 167
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24. EIEMIF

2023 2022
20234 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
KER TEH LER
At beginning of the year (360) @1
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 13) RiEm A (5E13) (124) (339)
At end of the year (484) (360)

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows: KBEEIRHEBIITAT
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH TEH LEH
Deferred tax assets RERISE 736 532
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (252) (172)
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iR MR M EE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and

assets during the financial years prior to offsetting are as follows:

24.

EIERIA (48)

RIBHA Y REEANNELERBEEER
BENMEME D REFHINT :

Deferred tax liabilities of the Group: FERBERESE:
Property,
plant and Intangible Right-of-use
equipment assets assets Total
BERRE B EE FREEE 4zt
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FOEH  FeEH  FemH  TemH
At 1 January 2023 120231810 211 480 14 705
Recognised in profit or loss RBRARER 211) (295) 53 (453)
At 31 December 2023 120235128310 - 185 67 252
At 1 January 2022 20221818 299 77 53 1,069
Recognised in profit or loss PRERNER (88) (237) (39) (364)
At 31 December 2022 120226128318 211 480 14 705
Deferred tax assets of the Group: FEBIRERBEESE
Provision for
Allowance  unrealised Other
Provision for expected foreign Contract  temporary
forbonus  creditloss  exchange liabilities  differences Total
RS RER Hit
TEARE  BEEE  SNERE  GHEE  UREE b
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
TEEH  TOER  TeER  TeEH  TEE  Tewm
At 1 January 2023 120231518 (484) (40) (268) (41) (82) (1,065)
Recognised in proftt or loss REmRED 244 1 268 (127) (57) 329
At 31 December 2023 120235123318 (240) (39) - (368) (89) (736)
At 1 January 2022 1202241518 (356) (59) (101) (485) (89) (1,090)
Recognised in proftt or loss PEmRED (128) 19 (167) 244 57 25
At 31 December 2022 120225128311 (484) (40) (268) (241) (82) (1,065)
C-Link Squared Limited 169
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25, g7
Number of
shares (‘000) HK’000
& H
(Fr2) FAET
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2022, 20221818

31 December 2022 and 2022F12H31H K&

1 January 2023 2023F181H 1,500,000 15,000
Share subdivision (Note (i) B&AD R 4m (B 5E() 3,000,000 -
At 31 December 2023 7220235 12831H 4,500,000 15,000

Number
of shares
(‘000) HK’000 RM’000
Rin&H
(Fr2) FAT FLEH
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHERE :
At 1 January 2022, 202241818

31 December 2022 and 2022F12831H K&

1 January 2023 2023%F181H 800,000 8,000 4,233
Share subdivision (Note (i)) BRI Am (S 5EG) 1,600,000 = =
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12H31H 2,400,000 8,000 4,233

Note: Bk -

(i) Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 June 2023, every one
issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company was subdivided into three ordinary shares
of one third Hong Kong cent each. The share subdivision became

effective on 13 June 2023.

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

26. RESERVE
(@) Share premium

26. &
(@) RDiEE

RM’000
CEH

At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 20221818 ~2022F12831H &
31 December 2023 2023%F12831H 47,227

(b) Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the excess of the aggregate of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries over the consideration
paid to effect the transfer of shares in Coeus Systems,
Compugraphic Media and C-Link Malaysia.

(c) Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve represents the exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations.

27. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Sale and purchase of goods and services

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the following significant transactions
between the Group and its related parties took place at terms
agreed between the parties during the financial years:

(b) EB#EE
EHEBEENBADNERR
AABEEBIBF L Coeus Systems-
Compugraphic Mediaf&C-Link
Malaysiafd iz 15 BB TR ERN

85 e
© ERME
EREBISREENEBNERE
#e
27. EXFAKA RS
HEEmRRE

B B 75 ¥R R ELAth 3t 5 I BR RO R B 5 B R
S > REREHERR S 2 EHN T HRE AR
SN EERE T HERRRET

2023 2022

20234 20224

Group RM’000 RM’000

AEHE SEH SEL

Purchase of consumable from a related B i 75 Compugraphic Forms

company, Compugraphic Forms Sdn. Bhd. Sdn. Bhd. BEE HFEm (FIEE()

(Note (i) 536 533

Rental payable to director EIESHEE 84 84

Note:

(i) It is a related party of the Group as a director of the Company is a
shareholder of Compugraphic Forms Sdn. Bhd.

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related
party transactions as at reporting date are disclosed in Notes 18
and 20.

0] HR A& A B —%EE ACompugraphic
Forms Sdn. Bhd.B9i& &R » tRE A AEREM
RARETS o

BRSBTS EEMRE
BIEFNBERIRER 185200
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

27. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 27. EXMBAERS @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Compensation of key management personnel FEEEASHM
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority FTEEBAEBEARAEETERIE
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities BRE - BERESARERGTHNAS
of the Group either directly or indirectly including any directors. BiEEAES-
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH FoERE ToERE
Fees W 619 742
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYH = 5,923 3,916
Pension scheme contributions RIREZET AR 282 349
6,824 5,007
Included in total key management personnel FTEEEASFHNEREEE

compensation are:

Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) BB (sE11) 6,479 4,322
The related party transactions above fall under the definition of BB A RSB LT RRIE14AE T
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction in EENMERZRFERAERZ > LAliR
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and they are fully exempted B EMBRNEHAZTEZEEB R AQF
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has EMZERZET EMRAF14AZIET
complied with the requirements, where applicable, under Chapter HEE WEA) °

14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these transactions.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

28.

29.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. ERITAMAFE
Financial instruments that are not carried at WIERAFEIREHRAER A
fair value and whose carrying amounts are TEMNSEALENESMIA
reasonable approximation of fair value
The following are classes of financial instruments that are not L/(—Fﬁjjiiﬂﬁt NTEEFREHREER
carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable NEENGEOMUENSHRTANER !
approximation of fair value:
Note
FisE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H MR 18
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIE 20
Loans and borrowings BRI ER 22
Lease liabilities HEaE 23
The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are ZETMEERBENRABARATE
reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to their short- NEERUE RESEGHAME A
term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re- ARBREEBHARABENEERTIHF
priced to market interest rates on or near the reporting date or the EREHIET R RN ET RS
impact of discounting is insignificant. Ko
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 29. f1#5EIGEEEHIEREER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available for the development of
the Group’s operations whilst managing its financial risks, including
credit risk, interest risk and liquidity risk.

The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are
approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to engage in
speculative transactions.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives,
policies and processes for the management of these risks.

AEENVBEREBEERRSTERRE
E%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂ&é/}_Tﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁi‘“é"
BRO-ARKEEHVBRR GEEE
@ BRSO ENE & R o

AERZRESGHENARESRNIE
31 TTLT’E BEXREENBRETRER
x5

DU BB sF A S B £ 3t B 75 B B 9 R
ORkEEZFRBHER BRKERF-
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

174

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arises principally from its receivables from
customers and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties. Management has a credit policy
in place to control credit risk by dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and deposit with banks and financial
institutions with good credit rating. The exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis and action will be taken for
long outstanding debts.

Exposure to credit risk

At the reporting date, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets recognised in the statements of
financial position.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group’s customers are financial institutions which include
banks and insurance companies.

As at 31 December 2023, there were two customers (2022:
two customers) accounted for 35% (2022: 48%) of the total
net trade receivables.

C-Link Squared Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  29.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MHERREEBRREE @

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERK @
Credit risk concentration profile (Continued) EERAKETRR (@)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. As the customers are mainly financial institutions and
insurance companies in Malaysia with similar loss patterns,
the provision rates are based on days past due of the overall
trade receivables. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the financial IT services sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The
assessment of the correlation between historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
an estimate. The Group’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for
more than two years and are not subject to enforcement
activity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in Note 18. The Group does not hold collateral as
security.

RERSBMERBFEERETR
B UStERMEEHR -HR
ERIERFRATHEMEER
RIEEAE BERIBL) BEHR
RN EZEWGRIERENE X
B -ZEtERBRTHRMELS
RUKRKRE BT EFHRNE
EEMERIARN R RREERT
BANGEMAISRHER -

BEERSVERNAEENELR
RENEHAE A EBRREERE
DAt ERREEREEBERL
B2 o f40 > fis TRR B AR (BNED A
EE,.M{E)%EHHHH‘%X FRBIE
AIEERERMITIRFEENHS
i?]D)E'J@%E%éﬁEE?E%’\J%ﬁ’S%%E
TR AEREENELBRE
KR AT AT BE M (L ST AV Y o 5T
HEEHREBOR -FBALENRR
RIAMREEBE Z BRI B
Gt AEENELEEHRELER
R EMR R RAT A EEEARS
PARRNBERENIER

—RME > &5 EWRIEN R RS
BMEN B TRHEFHZENT
Dsg- RS HMNESEER
BRRMFISRENSEEREE
BEREE - AE B I BB E IR
R EIRR
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MERREEBRREE @

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERE @)
Credit risk concentration profile (Continued) EEEKREDIRR &)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk UTEHINBEAAEEE S EBIWERIE
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision FABEERNEERMRNER :
matrix:
Estimated Expected credit losses
total gross LI
Expected  carrying amount Collectively Individually
credit loss rate at default assessed assessed Net balance
BEE fhEES
7K FESELE SR {BRIGRE GIHRE

Group % RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
pie-30] % ER SER ER ER
31 December 2023 2023E12A318
Neither past due nor impaired EREETRAE 057% 10277 5 5 10218
1030 days past due not impaired BFIE0REXAE 1.26% 2,855 3% 5 2819
31 10 60 days past due not impaired AENE0KERAE 2.00% 2,698 60 5 2638
6110 90 days past due not impaired A1 20X BAAE 2.96% 1,282 3 = 1,244
More than 90 days past due notimpaired ~ M#I00R U EBAHE 10.05% 3,064 308 = 2756
Total st 17.08% 20,176 501 - 19,675
31 December 2022 202F12A318
Neither past due nor impaired RO EAR 0.22% 81 18 = 8176
11030 days past due not impaired BFEOREXAE 0.55% 5,865 kY 5 5833
31 10 60 days past due not impaired BENE0RERAE 0.82% 2319 19 5 2300
61 t0 90 days past due not impaired AEIZOKERAE 1.16% 862 10 5 852
More than 90 days past due notimpaired ~ #A00K M LBXEE 6.34% 2790 9% 83 2613
Total i3t 900% 20,080 173 B 19,774
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  29.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MERREEBRREE @

(b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of the Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank borrowings. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate

(b)

RIEISEN
MEEBRBSEEEEMTANAY
BRRRFESAEFED B RE
B MK ENFr A SR BY LR ©

ZIS%@'E%#%ETTTETAEIB’J%U?Z
BeAEEIBERTESRT
E%TFFE*'JK&@JH[S“ g ”ﬁ &

fluctuations. However, it is the Group’s policy to obtain the BB KR BIRITEREVSEEI M R
most favourable interest rates available whenever the Group BWESREZSHZE-

obtains additional financing through bank borrowings.

The information on maturity dates and effective interest rates TR EEINPRAERIEN
of financial liabilities is disclosed in their respective notes. BERRNE BN

Interest rate sensitivity T E

The Group’s term loans at floating rates were denominated AEBRIBMNEFENERE
in Ringgit Malaysia. At the reporting date, if interest rates MU ERAELERTE PR

had been 50 basis point higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before tax would have been
lower/higher, as follows:

SR EFREHEMBEERFTE
MBERT  MAEXEHA " TES50
B £ & B 4< & B B9 BR 72 A e M 7R
LB

2023 2022

20235 20224

Group RM’000 RM’000
wER F<EH SEH
Effect on profit before tax HIRRANEN 2 2 34 46

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest
rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment.

MERGRED T BRROEREHT)
BERERHENTIHIRG
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  29.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (c)

MERREEBRREE @

MENE = bR

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group’s funding requirements and liquidity risk are
managed with the objective of meeting business obligations
on a timely basis. The Group finances its liquidity through
internally generated cash flows and minimises liquidity risk by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the
Group’s liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations.

nBETRRIEAEEBLUETH

N BEGNRR AEEEY
WABETRAREIERATHEE

Ra@ERAEER -

FEENEEBRERBET AR
NEESERKBITEBEH &
EEZBNMELENRETRER/H
MEMBETREES WEBREH
RWAEEEREEURKIEEME
BERBE R

TREGAN R E BRER G4KRA
REESEBNAEEEEIHE
Je

On demand
or within Two to
one year five years Total
HMERS
R—FRN “ERHF st
Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
TER FLEHE FLEH FoERE
At 31 December 2023 142023 12831H
Financial liabilities =MAE
Trade payables and other payables =Ry ANEREY =Kl
FE(IRIB 7,935 - 7,935
Loans and borrowings gﬁ&%ﬁ 2,875 4,458 7,333
Lease liabilities 5a& 348 367 715
11,158 4,825 15,983
At 31 December 2022 420225128318
Financial liabilities EREE
Trade payables and other payables BT IE R H i
FE(ITFRIB 7,812 - 7,812
Loans and borrowings B ER 6,907 7,296 14,203
Lease liabilities HEaE 110 45 155
14,829 7,341 22,170
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

30. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 30. RIEEEELENEGES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Total
liabilities
from
Lease Loans and financing
liabilities borrowings activities
BLEES
EEN
HEAaR B RER &A%
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
CEH TEH °ER
Group (Note 23) (Note 22)
wE (Ff¥z¥23) (Ff¥z¥22)
1 January 2022 2022F1H1H 278 16,203 16,481
Interest paid B E - @17) @417)
Repayment of loans and borrowings &8 & HUR &= - (2,841) (2,841)
Repayment of lease liabilities EERHEaE (204) - (204)
Interest expense FMERZ 8 418 426
Amortisation of transaction costs IS §i - 20 20
31 December 2022 2022%12H31H 82 13,383 13,465
1 January 2023 2023%F181H 82 13,383 13,465
Interest paid BEAAFE = (375) (375)
Repayment of loans and borrowings B2 &R ER - (6,559) (6,559)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAaR (182) = (182)
Additions AE 764 - 764
Interest expense FMEME 13 375 388
Amortisation of transaction costs 5 P A - 71 71
31 December 2023 2023F12H31H 677 6,895 7,572
C-Link Squared Limited 179
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

31.

180

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 31. E£EIE
The Group’s capital management is to maintain a strong capital AEBNEAEEETEHFARAANER
base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going R RERAEBEFELSENIE I L4
concern and maintains an optimal capital structure, so as to RRENEAZRE UERBEERA
maximise shareholders value. Management reviews the capital t-BEESZREEREARNAREERNE
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated RE BV R B LU 5T B AR 2R A8 o
with the capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BERYUBAEEAREE AEEHITHE
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to KA FRENKESHE HREFEE
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. ABITHREEEELUR D ER
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the total rEBRFERAEEABLEEEELS BB
loans and borrowings as a percentage of total equity attributable AR ERBEG B FEEAERFEARAE
to the equity holders of the Company at the financial year end. RSB AL EEBEN T DL &
The Group’s policy is to maintain a prudent level of gearing ratio EENHKRRESTENEEERBLLER
that complies with debt covenant and regulatory requirement. The R EEBREREERTE NIRSHR
gearing ratios at end of the reporting period are as follows: NEEBBLEERNT :
2023 2022
20235 20224
Group RM’000 RM’000
e TEH LEH
Loans and borrowings (Note 22) Bk Ea (EE22) 6,895 13,383
Equity attributable to the equity holders of RABRIETE ANEIEZ
the Company 81,222 84,561
Gearing ratio BESBELR 8.5% 15.8%
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital R BRFER AEENEAEESAL

management during the financial year.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY 32. BREENHEAT
Financial information of a subsidiary that the Company has material BEEARFEREGIARANB AR
non-controlling interests is provided below. MBEREN T
Proportion of equity interest held by non- SRR ERIFENRIEN
controlling interests BB
Name Country of incorporation and operation 2023 2022
B SEB BRI K EFRTE R R 20234 20224
Qingdao Yongbao People’s Republic of China 48,780.5% 48.7805%
FEKIR FhE AR HEME
2023 2022
20235 2022
RM’000 RM’000
FoEH FoER
Accumulated balances of material BAIFERERN REHAEER
non-controlling interest
Qingdao Yongbao BB KR 4,616 3,298
Profit allocated to material DEEERIFIERERAEF
non-controlling interest
Qingdao Yongbao FEBKfR 831 1,087
The summarised financial information of the Group’s subsidiary AEEBHRBEANEEEGZZHNBRATZ
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. This MHEERBEHRN T LEBERTBERA
information is presented based on amounts before inter-company Sl IHRTSREET ©
eliminations.

C-Link Squared Limited
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #2023 12531 H I F/E

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 32. BAEBENMHEBLT &)
Qingdao Yongbao BEKRF
2023 2022
2023 20224
RM’000 RM’000
FLEE TLEH
Current assets MEEE 13,380 8,370
Non-current assets FERBEE 55 77
Current liabilities MENAE (3,973) (1,687)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KRB B AELER 4,846 3,462
Non-controlling interests JEE R I = 4,616 3,298
Revenue W 14,074 22,693
Expenses X (12,371) (20,465)
Profit for the year FREF] 1,703 2,228
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RNBER NELER 872 1,141
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests ~ JF4% A& %5 FE (L & 7l 831 1,087
Profit for the year FEREF] 1,703 2,228
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ZJS@E%ENEH Hithem
attributable to owners of the Company @/ (518) 512 (541)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 3'53*”52% SEGEME
attributable to the non-controliing interests Wz (#5148 487 (516)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ~ FEREMEEUE (518) 999 (1,057)
Total comprehensive income attributable to FUNCIEZ 2N S R
owners of the Company 1,384 600
Total comprehensive income attributable to JFERERE MmN R AEEE
the non-controlling interests 1,318 571
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EWmIEEE 2,702 1,171
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BIFERERSZORE - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities & &EBZIRERA . (i) $28 391 (4,446)
Net cash inflow from investing activities REFBZIREMAFE 13 -
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEH RS R FEE - (869)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RERREEEIER
equivalents 0,/ GRY) B8 404 (5,319)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

33. COMMITMENTS 33. i
2023 2022
20235 20224
RM’000 RM’000
TER TLER
Contracted for but not provided for in the [SHESHEESN = zrp S
consolidated financial statements: VERE
In relation to the conversion of BERNEREEFREEFL
an existing building of data centre 1,282 1,282
In relation to the acquisition of BB REABRTLEE
source code as an intangible asset - 4,759
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 #4Z2023412/531H LF B F/ZE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. ZxATFERAR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RBEEFERBEAARATERRTEN
Company at the end of the reporting year is as follows: BT
2023 2022
20235 20224
RM’000 RM’000
CEH EH
Assets BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT E 16,440 20,906
Current assets MENE E
Prepayments and other receivables FE A I8 K E At FE UR =R IB 2,861 4,693
Cash and bank balances Re MKIR1T4AER 225 2,614
3,086 7,307
Total assets EEHE 19,526 28,213
Equity and liabilities EnkEaE
Current liabilities wEaE
Other payables and accruals HiESIE R Es &R 1,199 880
Amounts due to subsidiaries [EI B ABRIE 2,411 1,453
Amounts due to holding companies FEER A BFRIE 11 10
3,621 2,343
Net current (liabilities)/assets E (AR EEFRE (535) 4,964
Net assets BEERE 15,905 25,870
Equity iy
Share capital [N 4,233 4,233
Reserve (Note) B D) 11,672 21,637
Total equity R 4EER 15,905 25,870
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEEEE 19,526 28,213
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 ;220234512531 H IF T F/E

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. ZAFMIEKRR @

35.

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: P sE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABMEBEHHEZNT !
Accumulated Share Exchange Total
losses premium reserve reserves
Hethsia BipiEaE ERFEE B4R
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
ToEE FLERE FLER FLER
At 1 January 2023 20231818 (27,911) 47,227 2,321 21,637
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEEBLAER (10,975) - 1,010 (9,965)
At 31 December 2023 122023%F12831H (38,886) 47,227 3,331 11,672
At 1 January 2022 20221818 (17,467) 47,227 579 30,339
Total comprehensive loss ERSIBEEE (10,444) - 1,742 (8,702)
At 31 December 2022 202251283180 (27,911) 47,227 2,321 21,637
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35. {REHRFE

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the following events took place subsequent to
the end of the reporting period:

Subsequent to 31 December 2023, the Group completed its
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Sun Join Investment Limited.
The transaction was completed on 26 January 2024 and the
acquisition cost of HK$474,251,497, which was satisfied by the
issue of consideration shares upon completion. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the Group’s announcements dated 28
December 2023, 19 January 2024 and 26 January 2024.

Sun Join Investment Limited is principally engaged in investment
holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in business of
internet hospital and the business of providing brick-and-mortar
clinical services.

Since the management is in the process of finalization of the initial
accounting for the business combination as at 26 January 2024,
and hence it is impracticable to disclose further information about
the acquisition as at 26 January 2024 at the time the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue.

PR S M B MRFIMEE SN LUTEHR
WEMRBEREE

R2023F12831H 2% > AEBE BRI
EREREARATI00%RIRME - £
5B R2024FE 1326 A5 WEB R A2
474,251,497 70 ERTEREBFEIBET
RERDZC WBEEEBHNEEER
HERA2023FE 125281 ~2024F1819H
220241 H26BMAE o

BREREERRABDTIENEREZERK
HfB AR ET BN EEHMBRET K
RUHBEERPIZREES-

HNEBIEE EEREZIBR2024F1526
ANEBSHNS StEE > AR
REMBRRBEEMERERERR
R2024F1B26 MBS IENE—F E
i} o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RA TS 22

A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities of ~ <% B &7 A @M FEBEEWLEIZEG S 28

the Group for the past five financial years is set out below: REERBEBENT !
RESULTS E 35 |
For the year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILLEFE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FLEH ToHFE TLHFH TLoFE TLHEH
Revenue I & 93,763 105,680 111,901 76,719 71,526
(Loss)/profit before tax BRIAAT (B518) mF) (1,465) 2,697 9,106 704 19,015
Income tax expense FriSM (1,953) (2,417) (4,561) (5,769) (5,962)
(Loss)/profit for the year F£R (F8) HH] (3,418) 280 4,545 (5,065) 13,053
(Loss)/profit for the year FEMEF A (B518)
attributable to: A
Equity holders of the KATIRERFBA
Company (4,249) (807) 2,726 (5,085) 13,053
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEKRAR
At 31 December
128318
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 2020% 20194
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FoEH ToaH ToaH TLEH FLoTH
Total assets MBEE 103,620 111,760 117,162 106,321 70,234
Total liabilities =K (17,782) (23,901) (29,288) (25,404) (22,242)
Total equity i 85,838 87,859 87,874 80,917 47,992
Total equity attributable to: FE{LARME S
Equity holders of the NNBREFE AN
Company 81,222 84,561 85,147 80,917 47,992
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

The following expressions shall, unless the content otherwise states, have X ZE B BFIEIN U THEAER FHHE !

the following meanings:

“2021 Announcement”
F2021F A

“2022 Announcement”
F2022FE A

“2023 Announcement”
M2023F A

“2024 AGM”

[2024FE R EHBEKNE

“Acquisition”

¢ Eacl

NG

FAl

“Articles”

N

“Audit Committee”
IBZEEE)

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
EEg

“BVI”
RBRLEHS)

“CG Code”

MEERTAL

“Chief Executive Officer”
MTEABEL

the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2021
AT HEEA021F11B4HZAE

the announcement of the Company dated 10 January 2022
AT HEAA2022F1 1082 At

the announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2023
AT HEEA2023F7H28H 2 AL

the 2024 annual general meeting of the company to be held on Thursday, 23
May 2024 at 20/F, Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong or any adjournment thereof
11202458230 (2H30Y) fREES 510 # /8 % (R B335 7 E —HR2018
THARAB04FERFBFAGNEMITMES

the acquisition of 100% of the issued shares of Sun Join through our direct
wholly-owned subsidiary, Core Squared Limited
ERBEMNEIZEENB AT Core Squared Limited it B8 B% 75 100% B2 21T

n

artificial intelligence
ATEHE

the memorandum and articles of association of the Company as amended
from time to time

R REEMBRAM KR EREER])

the audit committee of the Board
EEgEZEZEY

the board of Directors

Bxg

the British Virgin Islands
BERUES

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 (formerly
Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules
L HRAIMERC FIFBAMTE14) PRE(EEEARTAD

the chief executive officer of the Company
RABITHAER

C-Link Squared Limited
2023 FR
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»

“Code Provision(s)
I<FAMESZ

“Company” or “our Company”
/NS

“Companies Act”
FABAL

“Companies Ordinance”
A EME A

“controlling shareholders”
MR AR ER

“COVID-19 Pandemic” or
“COVID-19 Outbreak”

FCOVID-19 & 1513
FCOVID-19 1§35

“Data Centre”

6 ELelNY

“Directors”

&%)

”

“Executive Director(s)

M$ITESR)

“Flash Dragon”
[ Flash Dragon |

the code provisions set out in the CG Code
EEATRIPTEST AR

C-Link Squared Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed and traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1463)

C-Link Squared Limited’ IR S8 SFMRIINERRBRAT HBEE#
TRMEBZFAER EMREE RS © 1463)

the Companies Act (2023 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FHEHBEATE (2023FB5ThR) » EAREEST R UE M5 BN

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
SR ERBFE622F A BRA

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
A7 F BRI TR

COVID-19 pandemic outbreak
COVID-19%Z 1B 1§ &

the tier 3 compliant data centre
RE=ZMIRENBIEF L

the director(s) of our Company
KAFIESR

the executive director(s) of the Company

KRBRITES

Flash Dragon Company Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. F Ling
Flash Dragon Company Limited » —fEJFHF Lingfc 2 E#H BN A E

C-Link Squared Limited
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» oo«

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”,
“our” or “us”

TS &) o T3 A

“Hong Kong”
r&58]

“HK$”, “HKD” or “Hong Kong dollar(s)”

7T

“Independent Non-Executive
Director(s)”

MBI IFITES)

“r
My

“Latest Practicable Date”
=% rl1THEA

“Jupiter Rain”
I Jupiter Rain |

“Listing”
oty

“Listing Date”
r i HEA
“Listing Rules”
FE#RA

“Main Board”

FFEM

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of
its subsidiaries, as the content may require) or, where the context so requires,
in respect of the period before our Company became the holding company
of its present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our Company and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
respective predecessors

KRB REMBAR AR REFA—RALZRMBLRR REAS
BEME) » NN EMMR RARFRAHIBENBRARNZER AR Z A
HARE AIIE A ARIMNIBERB AR RZEWB AR ENERR BF
BERME) BESXBNFZRF

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REFAFHITHE

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEEREAEEEAETT

the independent non-executive director(s) of the Company
KRABVEIIFRITES

information technologies

EGIYREs

22 April 2024, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining
certain information contained in this annual report prior to its publication
2024F 45228 > BIAFRTIEFIHEE EPFrEETERNNRER 1T HH

Jupiter Rain Company Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. W Ling
Jupiter Rain Company Limited » —fE AW Lingft £ 2 BB AN A

the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
AR B AP EAR £ Th

27 March 2020, the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board
first commence
2020F3H27H B M B XEBEEIRE SN H AR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

THRFEH EHRA EFEHERT AR st U E 5 e

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operating in parallel with GEM of
the Stock Exchange

BB RZPTEENE SR 2 (RN EERETS) > BRI FIGEMIL B >
TATESE

C-Link Squared Limited
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B&

MO
MIEESI2)

“MICR”
TMICR

“Model Code”
M@ <Rl
“Mr. F Ling”
IF Ling#e 4
“Mr. S Ling”

'S Ling5t 4 |

“Mr. W Ling”
TW Lingc 4|

“Nomination Committee”
MERZEZEE)

“Non-Executive Director(s)”

BERITEE]

“PRC”
TFRET

“Prospectus”
AR ER

190
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Movement Control Order
TEER<

magnetic ink character recognition
kK F 775 Bl

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules, as
amended from time to time

FARAIMIERC3 (FIMEAMIER10) PRE EME T AERETESFTZNR
TR Y @ REFERT)

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, the brother of Mr. W Ling and Mr. S Ling
Ling Sheng Hwang?t 4 » W LingZc £ #0S LingZc £ 89 2 28

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan, a Non-Executive Director and the brother of Mr. W
Ling and Mr. F Ling
Ling Sheng Shyanst 4 » A IEETTE ELARW Lingst £ FF Lingfc £ 7 5%

Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, the brother of Mr. F Ling and Mr. S Ling
Ling Sheng Chung4t4E > F LingZc £ S LingZc £ 89 228

the nomination committee of the Board
EEFRREEY

the non-executive director(s) of the Company

ERBIIFRTES

the People’s Republic of China
FREE AR

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March 2020
AT BERA2020F3817HVEKR ER



DEFINITIONS

i
“Qingdao Yongbao”

15 BXiR)

“Remuneration Committee’

HNEEE)

“Reporting Period”
MR EHA)

“RM” or “RM cents”

eERIRI<ERF

“RMB”
TARYE)

“SaaS”
['SaaS |

“Senior Management”
EREIREE]

“SEO”

EcE=ySE iy 0N

“SGD”
THf 3R 7T

“Share Option Scheme”
TRERCHEET )

“Share(s)”

TR&1% 1

“Shareholder(s)”
TREER

Qingdao Yongbao Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.* (B BKREREBRAF),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 22 September 2020, and
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

SEXKRERFEARAE > —RBIR2020F9822HFEFEMR I A RET
RED MREABTINIEEENB AT

the remuneration committee of the Board
ExgiNEEe

the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEEE

Ringgit and Ringgit cents, the lawful currency of Malaysia
BRADZEERSERALERL

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
FEVEESIBARE

Software as a service

RN AR S

the senior management of the Company
KRFIERERE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended and supplemented from time to time

BRERIBEERFRPAEHRG) (EFEHERT AT

Singapore Dollar

KT

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on 11 March 2020
N BIFA20205F38 11 BIRMBI BB AR #E 51 2

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company
RABRAFEREE.OITETHNEBR

the holder(s) of the Shares
- VEST=DN
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“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
B AT PR 1w EBHMAERZMERRAE

»

“substantial shareholder(s) has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

(EERER] {5 BB LWRAPMETIEER

“United States” the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction

IESE] 5 ENREFRE HETABHEZHEBZEENMAME

“%” per cent

M% ] 8 Aot

* For identification purposes only
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